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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the SEVENTY SEVENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
of the company will be held at 10 30 am on Thursday, 11th October, 2012 at Crewe Hall,
Weston Road, Crewe, Cheshire CW1 6UZ, for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit,
passing the following resclutions which are proposed as ordinary resolutions

1

To receive the report of the Directors and the audited financial statements for the year
ended 30th Apnil, 2012

2 To approve the payment of the proposed ordinary dividend on the ordinary shares
3 Toreelect Mr M S Goodwin as a Director
4 To approve the Directors” Remuneration Report for the year ended 30th April, 2012
5 To re-appoint KPMG Audst Plc as audstor and to authonise the Directors to determine
their remuneration
By Order of the Board
Registered Office P ASHLEY
ivy House Foundry, Secretary

Hanley, Stoke-on-Trent
27th July, 2012




NOTES TO NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

1

Members are entitled to appoint a proxy to exercise all or any of their nghts to attend and to speak and vote on
their behalf at the meeting A sharehclder may appoint more than one proxy in relaton to the Annual General
Meeting provided that each proxy 15 appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held
by that shareholder A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company A proxy form which may be used to
make such appointment and give proxy instructions accompanies this notice

To be vahd any proxy form or other instrument appointing a proxy must be received by post, by scanned copy

sent to proxies @goodwingroup,com or {denng nermal business hours only} by hand at lvy House Foundry,
Hanley, Stoke-on-Trent, ST1 3NR no later than 10 30am on 9th October, 2012

The return of a completed proxy form or other such instrument will not prevent a shareholder attending the
Annual General Meeting and voting in person if he/she wishes to do so

Any person to whom this notice 1s sent who s a person norminated under section 146of the Comnparues Act 2006 to
enjoy information rights {a “Norminated Person”} may, under an agreement between tum/herand the shareholder
by whom hefshe was nominated, have a right to be appointed (or to have someone else appointed) as a proxy
for the Annual General Meeting I a Nominated Person has no such proxy appointment night or does not wish
to exercise 1It, he/she may, under any such agreement, have a nght to give instructions to the shareholder as to
the exercise of voting nghts

The statement of the nghts of shareholders in relation to the appointment of proxies in paragraphs 1 and 2
above does not apply to Nominated Persons The nghts described in these paragraphs can only be exercised by
shareholders of the Company

To be entutled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting {and for the purpose of the determination by
the Company of the votes they may cast}, shareholders must be registered in the Register of Members of the
Company at 10 30am on 9th October, 2012 {or, in the event of any adjournment, 10 30am on the date which1s two
days before the time of the adjourned meeting) Changes to the Register of Members after the relevant deadlne
shall be disregarded 1n determining the nghts of any person to attend and vote at the meeting

As at 26th July, 2012 (being the last business day prior to the publication of this Notice) the Company’s 1ssued
share capital consists of 7200,000 ordinary shares, carrying one vote each Tharefore, the total voting nights in
the Company as at 26th July, 2012 are 7200,000

Shareholders should note that it 1s possible that, pursuant to requests made by shareholders of the Company
under section 527 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company may be required to publish on a website a statement
setting out any matter relating to (1) the audit of the Company’s accounts {including the auditor's report and the
conduct of the audit) that are to be faid before the Annual General Meeting, or {11} any circumstance connected
with an auditor of the Company ceasing to hold office since the previous meeting at which annual accounts and
reparts were lad 1n accordance with section 437 of the Companies Act 2006 The Company may not require the
shareholders requesting any such website publication to pay Its expenses 1n complying with sections 527 or 528
of the Companies Act 2006 Where the Company ts required to place a statement on a website under section 527
of the Companies Act 2006, it must forward the statement to the Company’s auditor not later than the time when
it makes the statement available on the website The business which may be dealt with at the Annual General
Meeting includes any staterent that the Company has been required under section 527 of the Companies Act
2006 to publish on a website

In order to facihitate voting by corporate representatives at the meeting, arrangements will be put 1n place at
the meeting so that (1) if a corparate shareholder has appointed the chairman of the meeting as its corporate
representative with instructions to vote on a poll in accordance with the directions of all of the other corporate
representatives for that shareholfder at the meeting, then on a poll those corporate representatives wili give
voting directions to the chairman and the chairman will vote (or withhold a vote) as corporate representative
in accordance with those directions, and (n) «f more than one corporate representative for the same corporate
shareholder attends the meeting but the corporate shareholder has not appointed the charrman of the meeting
as 1ts corporate representative, a designated corporate representative will be nominated, from those corporate
representatives who attend, who will vote on a poll and the other corporate representatives will give voting
directions to that designated corporate representative Corporate shareholders arereferred tothe guidance 1ssued
by the Institute of Chartered Secretanes and Adminstrators on proxies and corporate representatives {www icsa
org uk] for further details of this procedure The guidance includes a sample form of representation letter if the
chairman s being appointed as described 1n (1) above

10 None of the Directors have service contracts with the Company

11 If approved by shareholders the final dividend will be paid to shareholders on 15th Qctaber, 2012




GOODWIN PLC
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

| am pleased to report that the pre-tax profit for the Group for the twelve maonth period
ending 30th Apnil, 2012 was £12 3 milhon (2017 £8 1 mtlion), an 1ncrease of 51% on a
revenue of £1079 million {2011 £92 3 mulion)which 1s up 16 15% on the figures reported
for the same perniod last financial year The Directors propose a dividend of 32 082p
{2011 28 166p)

The gross profit earned of £30 8 million was higher by 213% than for the previous
financial year This improvement n gross profit and net pre-tax profit earned stems
from the recovery (n performance of our two valve companies, especially Goodwin
International The foundry also reported record profits

The Group order work load as at 30th April, 2012 was 22% higher than the same pernod
last year and stood at £78 milhon which still represents about seven months work at
higher tevels of activity The Group, whilst being diverse, stll focuses much attention
on the world wide energy industries be they ol and gas or high efficiency power
generation Both these two sectors by definitton have a long term future as the world
population continues to grow and attain higher living standards especially 1n the Pacific
Basin and also as the more mature markets strive 1o increase the efficiency of therr
power generation capacity and reduce theiwr CO, output into the atmosphere as well as
replace ageing facilities

The decisionto only increase the dividend by 10% to £2 31 million will assist the Company
in being able to finance three significant projects that will be started subject to approval
of the grant applications that we have submitted The first grant apphcation, which 1s to
the Employer Ownership Pilot Fund, 1s to set up a much larger apprentice training school
that will train 125 engineering apprentices to levels 3 and 4 over the next five years
The second application which i1s a Regional Growth Fund application 1s to expand the
clean activity of the foundry on our adjacent 79 acre site as well as to start a new valve
company and butld four office/factory units on the same site The third application 1s
for a CCS (Carbon Capture & Storage) grant where our foundry will develop further the
manufacturing capabthity of two super nickel alloys for use in htgh temperature gas and
steam turbines on which we will advise you further at the half year

As a key performance indicator, R & D continues within all group compariues whether
it 15 to reduce manufacturing cost or develop new products that we consider there 1s a
significant need for in the market over the next ten or more years The Group considers
the level of B & D expenditure sustainable and this year 1t comprised 75% of pre-tax
profits, appropriate for securing the long term growth of the group

As detailled in note 20, at 30th April, 2012 our capital base was £60 million, an increase
of £3 million over the previous year, and the Group had unutilised bank facilities of
£15 milkon  With Group activity levels likely to be significantly higher this coming
financial year, geanng levels {currently at 33%) and cash flow remains under pressure
due to the need for increased levels of working capital to finance higher levels of debtors
and work (n progress as well as the funding needed for the three projects should they
proceed A decision will be taken 1n the second quarter as to whether the Group takes
on additional hines of credit and maintains a safety buffer on our banking facilities
or whether the increased working capital needs are funded from post tax profits
The former route will be the more likely one

We are once again grateful to our UK and overseas employees for their hard work n
improving the performance of the Group

’:/;L_ L\S' gﬁ"aw Goodwin

27th July, 2012 Chairman

3




GOODWIN PLC
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors have pleasure inpresenting their report and audited inancial statements for the year ended 30th April, 2012

Business review

The principal activity of the Group 1s mechamical and refractory engineening The consohdated results for the year
may be summansed as follows

Restated

See Note 1

2012 201

£000 £000

Revenue 107,911 92,908
Profit before taxation 12,273 8,148
Tax on profit {2,938} (3,804)
Profit after taxation 9,335 4,224

Comments on the results for the year, including business review, are given in the Chairman’s statement

Proposed dividends

The Directors recommend that an ordinary dividend of 32 082p per share be paid to shareholders on the register
at the close of business on 14th September, 2012 {2011 29 166p per share) If approved by shareholders, the final
dividend will be paid to shareholders on 15th QOctaber, 2012

Freehold land and buildings

The Directors consider that the market value of the Group's freehold land and buildings 15 1n excess of the values
disctosed in the Group balance sheet

Directors
The Directors of the Company who have served during the year are set gut below
J W Goodwin
R 5 Goodwin
J Connolly
F A Gaffney
M 5 Geodwin
A J Baylay
S R Goodwin

The interests of the Directors in the share capital of the Company at the beginning and end of the financial year
were as follows

Number of 10p ordinary shares

30th Apnil, 30th Apnil,
2012 2011
Beneficial
J W Goodwin 65,939 65,939
R S Goodwin 72,388 91,474
J W Goodwinand R S Goodwin 2,040,631 1,992,916
J W Goodwin and R S Goodwin 1,231,612 1,202,983
J Connolly 722 -
F A Gaffney 7.131 7,131
M S Goodwin 140,678 149,488
S R Goodwin 168,021 177,003
A [ Baylay 1,200 -
Non benaficial
J W Goodwinand E M Goodwin 14,166 33,252

There have been no changes In the directors’ interests between 30th Apnil, 2012 and 26th July, 2012

The Director retinng 1n accordance with the Articles 1Is Mr M 5 Goodwin who, being eligible, offers himself for
re-election

No Director has a service agreement with the Company, nor any beneficial interest in the share capital of any
subsidiary undertaking

The Company does not have any share option schemes for employees or Directors



Shareholdings

The Company has been notified that as at 25th July, 2012, the following had an interest in 3% or more of the 1ssued
share capital of the Company

J W and R S Goodwin 2,040,631 shares (28 34%), J W and R S Goodwin 1,231,612 shares {1711%} These shares
are registered in the names of J M Secunties Limited and J M Secunities [No 3) Limited respectively J H Ridley
524,615 shares (729%), Rulegale Nominees (JAMSCLT) 282,902 shares (3 93%), Mrs P Dean 236,500 shares (3 28%)

Share capital

The Company's issued share capital comprises a single class of share capital which 1s divided into ordlnary shares
of 10p each Information concerning the 1ssued share capital in the Company is set outin note 19 to the financial
statements on page 34

All of the Company's shares are ranked equally and the n? hts and obligations attaching to the Company’s shares are
set out in the Company’s Articles of Association, copies of which can be obtatned from Companies House in England
and Wales or by writing to the Company Secretary

There are no restrichons on the voting nghts of shares and there are no restrictions in their transfer other than

- Certe;ln restrictions as may from time to time be imposed by laws and regulations (for example insider trading
laws), and

- Pursuant to the Model Code whereby Directors of the Company require approval to deal in the Company’s shares

Additionally, the Company 1s not aware of any agreements between shareholders of the Company that may result
in restrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares or voting nghts

The Directors have not been given the authonty to 1ssue or buy back the shares of the Company

Research and Development

The Group continues to Invest in research and development activities Expenditure in the mechanical engineering
division continued to be incurred during the year wathin Goodwin Steel Castings Limited on the production of mickel
alloy castings for the next generation of heat efficient power stations In the refractories engineering division,
investment continues to be made in vermiculite dispersions, ligh performance recipes, sihcon rubber, moulding
powder and wax products

Carbon Reduction Commitment

The Group has declared its CRC statistics to March 2012 which show a 4 6% increase in CO:z year on year and a 4%
improvement in the tonnes of CO: per mitlron pounds sales turnover Goodw:n Steel Castings Limited has a Chimate
Change Levy Agreement, the requirements of which it satisfies and under which it claams the allowable Climate
Change Levy relief All projects are assessed for energy efficiency
The Chairman 1s responsible for collation and monitoring under the CRC and the Group's engineers together with
the business unit General Managers are tasked with saving energy

To put a true and balanced perspective on the Group’s CO:; impact on the environment, consideration should be
given to the benefits of the very much reduced CQ; emission levels of the modern turbines and power generation
eqguipment into which our manufactured products are incorporated This would show the annual savings in CO;
many times outweigh the environmental burden imposed at the manufactunng stage

Risks and Uncertainties
The Group’s operations expose it to a vanety of nsks and uncertainties, including

Market nsk The Group provides a range of products and services, and there 1s a nsk that the demand for these
services will vary from time to time because of competitor action or economic cycles As shown in Note 2 to the
financial statements, the Group operates across a range of geographical regions, and its turnover s split across the
UK, Europe, North America, the Pacific Basin and the rest of the world This spread reduces risk in any one terntory
Similarly, the Group operates in both mechanical engineenng and refractory engineering sectors, mitigating the nisk
of a downturn in any one product area The potential nsk of the loss of any key customer 1s imited as, typically, no
single customer accounts for more than 10% of turnover

Technical nsk The Group develops and launches new products as part of its strategy to enhance the long-term value
of the Group Such development prajects carry business nisks, including reputational nsk, abortive expenditurs and
potential customer claims which may have a matenal impact on the Group The potential risk here 15 seen as small
given the Group 1s developing products 1n areas (n which 1t 1s knowledgeable and new products are extensively
tested pnor to their release into the market

Health and safety The Group's operations involve the typical health and safety hazards inherent in manufactuning
and business operations The Group s subject to numerous laws and regulations relating to health and safety around
the world Hazards are managed by carrying out nsk assessments and introducing appropriate controls

Acquisiions The Group's growth plan over recent years has included a number of acquisitions There 1s the nsk that
these, or future acquisitions, fail to provide the planned value This nisk s mitigated through extensive financial and
technical due diigence dunng the acquisition process and the Group's knowledge of the markets they operate in
Financial nsk The principal financial risks faced by the Group are changes 1n market prices (interest rates, foreign
exchange rates and commodity pnces), credit risks and hiquidity The Group has in place risk management policies
that seek to imit the adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group by using vanous instruments and
techniques, including credit insurance, stage payments, forward foreign exchange contracts and interest rate caps
and swaps Further information on the financial nsk management objectives and policies 1s set out in Note 20 to
the financial statements on page 34

This report contains forward-lcoking statements and information based on current expectations, and assumptions
and forecasts made by the Group These expectations and assumptions are subject to various known and unknown
nisks, uncertainties and other factors, which could lead to substantial differences between the actual future results,
financial performance and the estimates and histoncal results given in this report Many of these factors are outside
the Group’s control The Group accepts no hability to publicly revise or update these forward-looking statements or
adjust them to future events or developments, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise,
except to the extent legally required




Donations
The Company made no political contnbutions during the year
Donations by the Group for chantable purposes amounted to £57562 (20711 £23,000)

Employee consultation

The Group takes seriously its responsibiliies to employees and, as a policy, provides employees systematically
with information on matters of concern to them Itis also the policy of the Group to consult where appropriate, on
an annual basis, with employees or their representatives so that their views may be taken into account 1n making
decisions hkely to affect their interests

Employment of disabled persons

The policy of the Group 1s to offer the same opportunmity to disabled people, and those who become disabled, as to
all others in respect of recruitment and career advancement, provided their disability does not prevent them from
carrying out the duties required of them

Creditor paymaent policy

The Company has not adopted any formal code or standards on suppher payment practice The Company’s policy
1s to settle payments having negoctiated and advised terms and conditions with suppliers on a contract by contract
basis The Company has no trade creditors at 30th April, 2012 {2011 Nil)

Disclosure of information to auditors

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are gach
aware, there s no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are unaware, and each Director has
taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director to make himself aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information

Change in control

The Group’s committed term loan facilities include a change of control clause, which states that a change of control
of the parent company will be classed as an event of default and would enable the providers at their discretion to
withdraw the facilities

Corporate governance

Introduction

The Board has always felt that it should be recognised that what may be appropriate for the larger company may
not necessanly be so for the smaller company, a point raised previously in the Cadbury Code of Best Practice The
Board continues to be conscious of its non-compliance with certain aspects of the revised Code, as detalled below,
but does not believe that at this stage 1n the Group’s development and circumstances it 15 appropriate to change its
own operational or governance structure just to gain comphance As before, where it does not comply, the Board
1s happy to provide 1ts explanations for not doing so on the basis that it believes that such non-comphance 1s more
appropriate to the shareholders” and other stakeholders’ long term interests

Compliance statement

The Company 1s required to report en compliance with the detatled requirements of the UK Corporate Governance
Code (formerly the Combined Code) throughout the year In relation to all of the provisions except those mentioned
here the Company complied throughout the period Further details on all areas are given below

The Group does not comply with aspects of the Code’s requirements paragraphs A4, B1, B2, C3 and D2 1n terms
of non-executive Directors and the requirement for an Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Norminations
Commuttee and Senior Independent Director

The roles of the Chairman in runming the Board and the Managing Director in running the Group’s businesses are
well understood It 1s not considered necessary to have written job descriptions This I1s contrary to paragraph A2 1
The Chairman and Managing Director do not retire by rotation, which 1s contrary to paragraph B7 of the Code

There 1s no formal schedule of matters reserved for the Board, which is contrary to paragraph A11

The internal audit function was established dunng the previous year and since that date the Company has been
working towards comphance with C35

The Board

The Board, which compnses seven Executive Directors, meets formally by stself and with subsiciary Directors on a
regular basis In view of the Group's present size and proven track record, non-executive directors are not thought
to be appropriate, due to the cost likely to be involved and the lack of opportunity for adding significant value to the
business The Chairman and Managing Director do not retire by rotauion With this exception, all Directors retire at
the first AGM after their iniial appointment and then by rotation at least every three years

Duning the year, the Board met formally thirteen timas  Details of attendees at these meetings are set out below

J W Goodwin 13 out of 13 attended
R S Goedwin 12 out of 13 attended
J Connolly 13 out of 13 attended
F A Gaffney 12 out of 13 attended
M S Goodwin 13 out of 13 attended
A J Baylay 12 out of 13 attended
S R Goodwin 13 out of 13 attended

Regular informal meetings are also held to enable all members of the Board to discuss relevant issues with local
management and staff at the business units

The Beard retains full responsibihty for the direction and control of the Group and, whitst there 1s no formal schedule
of matters reserved for the Board, all acquisitions and disposals of assets, investments and matenal capital-related
projects are, as a matter of course, specifically reserved for Board decision
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Board evaluation

The Chairman and Managing Director address the development and traineng needs of the Board as a whole An
evaluation of the effectiveness and performance of the Board and the subsidiary Directors has been carried out by
the Charrman and Managing Director, by way of personal discussions and individual performance evaluation against
financial targets

All Directors have reasonable access to the Company Secretary and to independent professional advice at the
Company's expense

Board Comrmttees

The Board has not operated a separate Audit Commuittee, Remuneration Committee or Nomination Comrmittee dunng
the year due to is size and composition However, the Board as a whole has fulfilied many of the roles specified
in the revised UK Corporate Governance Code {formerly the Combined Code) for these sub-committees including

* raview of the interim and annual financial statements and associated announcements,

+ making recommendations in relation to the re-appointment, remunaration and terms of engagement of the external
auditors,

+ raviewing the external auditors’ work plan, audit process, independence and cbjactivity,

* reviewng the scope of work for the internal audit function,

* raviewing the “whistle-blowing” precedures

Intarnal control

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's system of internal control (Including operational, financial,
comphance and nsk management controls), which 1s designed to manage rather than eiminate risk and provides
only reasonable reassurance agamst material misstatement or loss Except as noted 1n this Corporate Governance
report, the Board confirms that the system of internal control accords with the UK Corporate Governance Code
(formerly the Combined Code)

The Board meets with an agenda to discuss corporate strategy, to formulate and monitor the progress of business
plans for all subsidianes and to identify, evaluate and manage the business nsksfaced The management philosophy
of the Group 1s to operate its subsicharies on an autonomous basis, subject to overall supervision and evaluation
by the Board, with formally defined areas of responsibility and delegation of authonty The Group has put in place
formal lines of reporting with subsidiary management meeting with the Directors on a regular basis

The Board considers that the close involvement of the Company's Directors in ail areas of the day-to-day operations
of the Group's business represents the most effective ongoing control over sts financial and business nsks n
particular, authonty 1s hmited to the Company Directors tn key nisk areas such as treasury management, camital
expenditure and other investment decisions The Directors annually review the effectiveness of the internal financial
control system including considering reports from management, discussions with semor personnel throughout the
Group, and consideration by the Board of any reports from the external auditor These procedures have been in
place throughout the year and up to the date of this report and accord with the FRC ‘Internal Control Guidance for
Directors on the UK Corporate Governance Code’ (formerly the Combined Code)

Given the close involvement of the Company's Directors in the operation of the business, the Beard does not currently
consider that a fermal review of non-financial controls would provide any additional benefit in their review of the
effectiveness of the Group's internal controls During the previous year the Group set up an internal audit function
and recruited a Group Internal Auditor The Group's exgcutive Directors and semior management will continue to
have close involvement on a day-to-day operational basis and the scope and results of internal audit work to be
performed will be kept under review in the coming year

Diractors’ remuneration
The remuneration of the Directors 1s considered by the Board so that no Director determines his own salary
Details of each element of the Directors’ remuneration are given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 9 and 10

External audit

The external auditor 1s appointed annually at the Annual General Meeting The Board considers the re-appointment
of the auditor, and assesses on an annual basis the quabfication, expertise, cost, independence and objectivity of
the external auditor |n addition, the Board regularly monitors the level of norn-audit services provided to the Group
by the external auditor to ensure that their independence 1s not compromised

Shareholder relations

All shareholders are encouraged to participate in the Company’s Annual General Meeting

The Board complies with the recommendations of the UK Corporate Governance Code {farmerly the Combined Code)
that the notice of the Annual General Meeting and related papers should be sent to shareholders at least twenty
working days before the meeting

The Directors attend the Annual General Meeting The Chairman will be available to answer questions at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting In addition, proxy votes will be counted and the results announced after any
vote on a show of hands

The Chairman ensures that the views of shareholders are commumicated to the Board as a whole, ensuring that
Directors develop an understanding of the view of major sharehoiders

Going concern

With the recovery in profitabihity of the Group over the past twelve months coupled with a record level wark load, the
Company at present 1s managing to successfully circumnavigate the continuing global economic conditions mainly
because of the Group's diversification 1n product and global sales outlets Whilst good profitability 18 expected to
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Going concern {continued)

continue for the next twelve months, there will remain pressure on cash flow due to increased levels of activity and
the start up of project activity as mentioned in the Chairman’s Statement should grant approval be gained

The Group, however, has considerable access to finangial resources with banks with whom the Company has a
good and stable relationship and as such should additignal finance be needed, raising it 1s not considered to be a
problem by the Directors especially as the Government has opened up to companies with turnover greater than
£50 million its low cost “National Loan Guarantee Scheme” which is designed to support companies such as ours
As a consequence, after making enquines the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue 1n operational existence for the foreseeable future and have continued to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financiai statements

Auditors

In accordance with Section 489 of the Companies Act 20086, a resclution is to be proposed at the ferthcoming Annual
General Meeting for the re-appointment of KPMG Audit Plc as auditors of the Company

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by

ok 1S Cooodera—

J W GOODWIN vy House Foundry,
Chairman Hanley, Stoke-on-Trent, ST1 3NR

27th July, 2012




GOODWIN PLC
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

Introduction
This report s submitted 1n accordance with the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations

Consideration by the Directors of matters relating to Directors’ remuneration
The remuneration policy 15 set by the Board as a whole and s described below

Remuneration policy

The Group's policy 1n respect of Directors’ remuneration for the forthcoming years is to provide individual packages
which are determined having due regard to the Company's current and projected profitabniity, the employee's
specific areas of responsibility and performance, their related knowledge and experience in the Company’s specific
fields of operation, the externat labour market and thetr personal circumstances whereby the Board sets a package
to remunerate and motivate the individual so as to best serve the Company All Board members have access to
independent advice when censidered appropriate In forming its policy, the Board has given full constderation to the
UK Corporate Governance Code formerly the Combined Code) best practice provisions on remuneration policy, service
contracts and compensation and has considered the remuneration levels of Directors of comparative companies

The Board does not, at present, considerit necessary toinclude a performance related element within the remuneration
of individual Directors

Service contracts

None of the Directors has a service contract, a Director may resign at any time by notice in writing to the Board There
are no set minimum notice penods but all Directors other than the Chairman and Managing Director are subject to
retirement by rotation No compensation I1s payable to Directors on leaving office

Total shareholder return

The following graph compares the Company's total shareholder return over the five years ended 30th Apnil, 2012
with that for the FTSE Small-Cap share index and the FTSE Engineenng and Machinery Sector Index

The FTSE Srmali-cap Share Index was chosen as it 1s a relevant broad equity market index for smaller quoted
companies
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT (continued)

Details of individual emoluments and compensation

The auditors are required to report on the information contained in this section of the Directors’ Remuneration Report

Salary Benefits Total Total Pension  Pension

in kind contnb-  contnb-

utions utions

2012 2012 2012 20Mm 2012 2014

£°000 £'000 £°000 £000 £000 £'000

J W Goodwin 293 45 338 309 11 1

R S Goodwin 293 45 338 309 1 11

J Connolly 173 24 197 175 - -

F A Gaffney 139 2 141 180 - -

M S Goodwin 141 3 144 134 - -

A J Baylay lappointed 10th December, 2010} 109 16 125 45 - -

S R Goodwin (appointed 10th December, 2010) 122 2 124 44 - -

Total 2012 1,279 137 1,407 1,196 22 22
Total 2011 1,091 105 1,196

Pension contnbutions comprise contributions to money purchase pension schemes

Benefits-in-kind consist of the prowision of a fully-expensed motor vehicle, cash alternative scheme, healthcare
(nsurance or other services

There are no share option schemes or other iong term incentive schemes
The Board of Directors are the key management personnel as defined in IAS 24

Approval of report

An ordinary resolution for the approval of this report wil be put to shareholders at the forthcomung Annual General
Meeting

The Directors’ Remuneration Report was approved by the Board on 27th July, 2012, and 15 signed on its behalf by

b 1S+ Loodern M{L

J W GOODWIN R S GOODWIN
Director Director
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
ANNUAL REPORT ANDTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the Group and parent Company financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and parent Company financial statements for each financial
year Underthat law they are required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the EU and applicable law and have elected to prepare the parent Company finantial staterments in accordance
with UK Accounting Standards and applicable UK law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice}

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and parent Company and of therr profit or loss for that penod

In prepanng each of the Group and parent Company financial statements, the Directors are required to
* select sustable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
* make judgements and estimatas that are reasonable and prudent,

+ for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the EU,

+ for the parent Company financial statements, state whather applicable UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained 1n the parent Company financial statements,
and

+ prepara the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s Inappropriate to presume that the Group
and the parent Company will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explan the
parent Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent
Company and enabie them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have
general responsibihty for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group
and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial information included
onthe Company’swebsite Legislation inthe UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislation in other junisdictions

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for prepanng a Directors’ Report, Directors’
Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance Statement that comply with that law and those regulations

Responsibility statements of the Directors in respect of the annual financial report
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

a) the financial statements, prepared 1n accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and
fair view of the assets, liabilitres, financial position and profit of the Company and the undertakings included in
the consohdation taken as a whole, and

b} the Directors’ Report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and position of
the Company and the undertakings included in the consohdation taken as a whole, together with a description of
the principal nsks and uncertainties that they face

P SO (-

J W GOODWIN R S GOODWIN
Dhrector Director
27th July, 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
to the Members of
GOODWIN PLC

We have audited the financial statements of Goodwin PLC for the yearended 30th Apnl, 2012 setouton pages 13to 48
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements 1s
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the EU The financial reporting
framewaork that has been applied in the preparation of the parent Company financial statements 1s applicable law
and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 15 made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 QOur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those
matters we are required to stateto theminan auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members,
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opunions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibitities Statement set out on page 11, the Birectors are responsible
for the preparation of the finaneial statements and for being satishied that they give a true and fair view Qur
responsibihty 1s to audit, and express an opimon on, the financial statements in accordance with apphcable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the APB's website at www frc org uk/
apb/scope/private cfm

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion

» the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of tha Group’s and of the parent Company's affairs
as at 30th Apnl, 2012 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,

¢ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adoptad by the EU,

+ the parent Company financial statements have been properly prapared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice,

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 20086,
and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Compames Act 2008
In our opimion

+ the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Repart to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Compantes Act 2006, and

» themnformation given inthe Directors’ Repont for the financial year forwhich the finanaial statements are prepared
15 consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by axception
We have nothing to reportin respect of the following
Under the Comparies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, in our opinion

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us, or

¢ the parent Company financial statements and the par of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are
not (n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

* cenawn disclosures of Directors’ remunearation specified by law are not made, or

* we have not receved all the infarmation and explanations we require for our audit
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

+ the Directors statement, set out on pages 7 to 8, in relation to going concern, and

* the part of the Corporate Governance Statement on pages 6 to 7 relating {o the Company's complhiance with the
nine provisions of the UK Cerporate Governance Code specified for our review, and

¢ cartatn elemants of the report to shareholders by the Board on Directors’ remunaeration

T 0 A

T Whddas {Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Pic, Statutory Auditor

27th July, 2012 Chartered Accountants
One Snowhull, Snow Hill Queensway, Birmingham, B4 6GH
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CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue
Cost of sales

GROSS PROFIT
Distrnbution expenses
Adrunistrative expenses

OPERATING PROFIT
Financial expenses

GOODWIN PLC

CONSOLIDATED INCONE STATEMENT
For the year ended 30th April, 2012

Share of profit of associate compames

PROFIT BEFORETAXATION
Tax on profit

PROFIT AFTERTAXATION

ATTRIBUTABLETO

Equrty holders of the parent

Minority interest

PROFIT FORTHEYEAR

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE

Notes

19

Restated

See Note 1

2012 20m
£000 £'000
107,911 92,908
(77,133} (67.,537)
30,778 25,31
{3,575) {3,243}
{14,118) {13,268)
13,085 8,860
{1,2085) {1,054}
393 342
12,273 8,148
{2,938) (3,904)
9,335 4,244
8,952 3,664
383 580
9,335 4,244
124.33p 50 89p




GOODWIN PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30th Apnil, 2012

Restated
See Note 1
2012 20m
£'000 £000
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 9,335 4,244
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Foreign exchange translation differences {1,478) (74)
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges 323 (352}
Change in fair value of cash flow hedges transferred to profit or loss (3,903) 3,728
Tax charge recogmised on unrealised income and expenses recogmsed
directly in equity 925 (878)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF INCOME
TAX (4,131} 2,422
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 5,204 6,666
ATTRIBUTABLETO
Equuty hoiders of the parent 4,912 6,160
Minonty interest 292 506
5,204 6,666
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GOODWIN PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30th April, 2012

Total
attributable
Trans- Cash Aow to equity
Share lation hedging Retamed holders of Mmnornty Total
captal resarve reserve  earmings the parent interest aqguity
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Year ended 30th April, 2012
Balance at 1st May, 2011
restated see note 1 720 2,215 2,422 36,868 42,225 3,437 45,662
Total comprehensive Income
Profit - - - 8,952 8,952 383 9,335
QOther comprehensive income
Foreign exchange translation
differences - {1,385) - - {1.385) (91) {1,476}
Net movements on cash flow
hedges - - {2,655) - {2,655 - (2,655}
Total comprehensive
incoma for the year - {1,385} {2,655) 8,952 4,912 292 5,204
Transactions with owners of
the Company recognised
directly In equity
Dividends paid - - - (2,100} {2,100) {68) {2,158}
Balance at 30th April, 2012 720 830 {233} 43,720 45,037 3,671 43,708
Yaar ended 30th Apnil, 2011
Balance at 1st May, 2010
as previously reported 720 1,198 (74) 35,082 36,927 3,242 40,169
Prior year adjustment
see note 1 - 1,016 - 122 1,138 - 1,138
Balance at 1st May, 2010
restated see note 1 720 2,215 {724} 35,204 38,065 3,242 41,307
Total comprehensive income
Profit restated see note 1 - - - 3,664 3,664 580 4,244
Other comprehensive Income
Foreign exchange translation
differences restated
see note 1 - - - - - (74) (74)
Net movements on cash flow
hedges - - 2,496 - 2,496 - 2,496
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 2,496 3,664 6,160 508 6,666
Transactions with owners of
the Company recogrsed
directly 1n equity
Dwidends paid - - - {2,000} {2,000} 31 {2.3M
Balance at 30th Apnil, 2011
restated see note 1 720 2,215 2,422 36,868 42,225 3,437 45,662
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GOODWIN PLC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

At 30th April, 2012

Restated  Restated
See Note1 See Note1l

2012 20m 2010
Notes £000 £000 £000

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 9 26,208 25,431 23,260
Investment in associates 1" %,238 1,137 918
Intangtble assets 10 12,531 12,299 12,798
39,977 38,867 36,977

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories 14 32,558 25,096 18,085
Trade and other receivables 15 24,334 25,664 21,815
Dernvative financial assets 20 %,407 4,349 635
Cash and cash equivalents 16 5,778 4,049 10,710
64,077 59,158 51,245
TOTAL ASSETS 104,054 98,025 88,222

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Bank overdraft 16 759 834 887
Other interest-beanng ioans and borrowings 17 219 226 139
Trade and other payables 18 26,249 24,544 21,516
Deferred constderation 18 3,256 2,774 -
Denvative financial habihities 20 2,061 1,246 1,306
Liabilities for current tax 2,278 1,713 2,160
Warranty provision 12 655 786 1,014

35,477 32,123 27012

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Otherinterest-beanng loans and borrowings 17 16,467 12,326 10,358
Deferred consideration 18 - 2,677 591
Warranty provision 12 570 855 1,099
Deferred tax habilities 13 2,832 4,382 2,535
19,869 20,240 19,903
TOTAL LIABILITIES 65,346 52,363 48,915
NET ASSETS 48,708 45,662 41,307
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLETO EQUITY HOLDERS OFTHE PARENT
Share capital 19 720 720 720
Translation reserve 19 830 2,215 2,215
Cash flow hedge reserve 19 {233} 2,422 {74}
Retained earmings 19 43,720 36,868 35,204
TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLETO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 45,037 42,225 38,065
MINORITY INTEREST 19 3,671 3,437 3,242
TOTAL EQUITY 48,708 45,662 41,307

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 27th July, 2012 and signed on its behalf by

J W GOODWIN R & GOODWIN
Durector Director Registered Company Number 305307
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GOODWIN PLC

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 30th Apnil, 2012

Restated  Restated
See Note1 See Notel

2012 2012 2011 2m
£'000 £000 £000 £°000
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit from continuing operations after tax 9,335 4,244
Adjustments for
Depreciation 3,054 2,817
Amortisation of intangible assets 715 535
Financial expense 1,205 1,054
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 51 10
Share of profit of associate compames (393) (342)
Tax expense 2,938 3,904
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL AND PROVISIONS 16,945 12,222
Decrease/{increase) in trade and other receivables 898 (3,916)
Increase in Inventones {7.638) (7,006)
Increase in trade and other payables
{excluding paymenits on account) 2,500 2,531
{Decrease)increase 1n payments on account {916) 737
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 11,789 4,568
Interest paid {929) (647)
Corporation tax paid {3,150) (3,395)
Interest element of finance lease obligations (22) {35)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 7,688 4M
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 173 96
Acquisition of property, ptant and equipment (4,569) (6,274}
Acquisitton of intangible assets - (674}
Acquisitton of subsidiaries net of cash acquired {502) -
Additional payment for existing subsichary/
acquisition of associated undertaking (35} (237)
Payment of deferred purchase creditor {3,300} -
Dividends received from associate company 277 247
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (7,956) (6,842)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of capital element of finance lease obligations (218) {304}
Oividends paid (2,100} (2,000}
Dividends paid to minonty interests {58} (311}
Proceeds from loans 4,772 2,359
Repayment of [oans (158} -
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2,238 (256)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,970 (6.607)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginmng of year 3,215 9,823
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash heid {166) {1)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR see note 16 5,019 3,215
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NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Accounting policies
Goodwin PLC (the “Company”) 1s incorporated in the UK

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and 1ts subsidiartes (together referred to as
the *Group™) and eguity account the Group's interest Iin associates The parent Company financial statements
present information about the Company as a separate entsty and not about its Greup

The Group financial statements have beenprepared and approved by the Directors inaccordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU {“Adopted IFRSs”) The Company has elected to prepare its
parent Company financial statements 1n accordance wath UK GAAP, these are prasented on pages 44 tc 48

The accounting policites set out below have, unless octherwise stated, been apphied consistently to all periods
presented in these Group financial statements

Judgements made by the Directors, in the application of these accounting policies that have sigmficant effect on
the financial statements and estimates with a significant nisk of matenal adjustment inthe nextyear are discussed
in note 26

With the recovery in profitability of the Group over the past twelve months coupled with a record leve! work load,
the Company at present 1s managing to successfully circumnavigate the continuing g lobal econamic conditions
mainly because of the Group's diversification in product and giobal sales outlets Whilst good profitability 1s
expected to continue for the next twelve months, there will remain pressure on cash flow dueto increased levels
of activity and the start up of project activity as mentioned in the Chairman’s Statement should grant approval
be gained

The Group, however, has considerable access to financial resources with banks with whom the Company has
a good and stable relationship and as such should additienal finance be needed, raising 1t 1s not considered to
be a problem by the Directors especially as the Government has opened up to companies with turnover greater
than £50 million its low cost “National Loan Guarantee Scheme"” which 1s designed to support companes such
as ours As a consequence, after making enguines the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and have continued to
adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the financial statements

New IFRS standards and interpretations adopted during 2012
In the current financial year, the Group has adepted the following new standards and interpretations

* |AS 24 (Revised) - Related Party Transactions {effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
201)

+ Annual Improvement Projects to IFRS's {issued May, 2010}

* Amendmentsto IAS 1 Presentation of statement of changes in equity (affective for annual pertods beginning
on or after 1st January, 2011)

These changes have had no matenal impact on the accounts for the year to 30th April, 2012

Measurement convention
The financial statements are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds

The financial staternents are based on the histoncal cost basis except where the measurement of balances atfair
value 15 required as below

Prior year adjustment - Change in treatment of intangible assets and deferred taxation

Following discussions with the Financial Reporting Review Panel, the Group has reviewed its accounting treatment
of intangibles This has resuited in the Group now recogrising deferred taxation habilities on ntangible assets
ansing on acquisitions in accordance with IAS 12 “IncomeTaxes | including intangi ble assets acquired 1n previous
years which has resulted in a prior year adjustment

The Group has also taken the opportunity to review i1ts measurement of intangible assets in foreign currency
acquisiions I previous years, the measurement of intangible assets on acquisitions was imtially recognised
at the sterling equivalent using the exchange rate at the time of the onginal transaction butthen continued to be
measured using thatongmal exchange rate Thentangible assets on acquisitions are now being measured to the
sterling equivalent at each balance sheet date using the exchange rate at each balance sheetdate in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy This correction has also resulted 1n a prior year adjustment

The effect of these prior year adjustments has been to increase net assets by £1,138,000 at 30th April, 2010 and by
£1,345,000 at 30th Apnl, 2011 The effect on profit and loss reserves has been to ingrease profit and loss reserves
at 30th April, 2010 by £122,000, and increase reported profit for 2011 by £36,000, being additional amortisation
of intangible assets of £67,000, and a decrease in the deferred tax charge by £93,000 The earmings per share for
the year ended 30th Apri, 2011 has been restated fram 50 39p to 50 89p
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Prior year adjustment - Change in treatment of intangible assets and deferred taxation (continued)

Effect of prior yaar adjustments on praviously reported balance shests

Goodwill
due to Amorti- Deferred
additional Foraign sation n tax in
deferrad tax exchange income mcome Total
£000 £°000 £000 £000 £000
At 30th April, 2010
Intangible assets 1,026 1,257 {15%) - 2127
Deferred taxation 11,025) (241) - 277 {989)
Net assets - 1,016 (155) 277 1,138
Recognised in translation reserve - 1,018 - - 1,16
Recognised wn income - - {155) 277 122
Total aquity - 1,016 (155) 277 1,138
At 30th Apnl, 2011
Intangtble assets 1,025 1,451 1212) - 2,264
Deferred taxation {1,025) (264) - 370 (919)
Mot assets - 1,187 212) 370 1,345
Recogmised in translation reserve - 1,016 - - 1,016
Recogmised 1n other
comprehensive Income - 171 - - 171
Recogmsed in profit and loss
reserves brought forward - - (155} 277 122
Recogmised in income n the year
ended 30th Apnl, 201 - - (57} 93 36
Tota) equity - 1,187 (2712} 370 1,345

Other disclosure adjustments to figures previously reported 1n the 2011 financial statements
Following discussion with the Financial Reporting Review Panel, as a part of the review of the 2011 figures, the
Group has made the following disclosure adjustments to previously reported 2011 amounts in the 2011 financial
statements warranty provisions of £1,641,000 were previously included in aceruals but are now shown separately
in the balance sheet, tax paid for 201 was previously disclosed in the cash flow statement at £2,517000 but has
been restated by £878,000 to £3,395,000, with a restaternent of £878,0001n the increase intrade and other payables
from £1,653,000 to £2,531,000, the total of £765,000 previously disclosed for foreign exchange {gains)/losses of
£48,000 plus gains on denvatives at fair value through profit and loss of £717,000 in 2011, have been restated to
£531,000 and £234,000 respectively in note 3, the sphit of total capital expenditure by area tn the segmental analysss
has been restated These disclosure adjustments had no effect onincome, total equity or net assets

Basis of consolidation

Subsidranes are entittes controlled by the Group Control exists when the Group has the power, directly or
indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from i1ts activities
In assessing control, potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are taken into account
The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that contrel ceases

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, gver the finangiat and
operating policies  Significant influence 1s presumed to exist when the Group holds between 20 and 50 percent
of the voting power of another entity  Associates are accounted for using the equity method and are initially
recogrused at cost The Group's investment includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated
wnpairment losses The consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of the total recognised
income and expense and equity movements of equity accounted investees, from the date that significant influence
commences until the date that significant influence ceases When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest
1n an equity accounted investee, the Group's carrying amount s reduced to nil and recognition of further losses 15
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive gbligations or made paymenis
on behalf of an investee
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Group entities at
the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and labthties denorminated in
foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling atthat date Foreign
exchange differences ansing on translation are recogrused in the income statement within operating profit
Non-monetary assets and habilities that are measured interms of historical cost ina foreign currency are translated
using the exchangerate at the date of the transaction Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are retransiated to the functional currency at foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates the fair value was determined

The assets and habibties of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on
cansolidation, are translated to sterling at foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheetdate The revenues
and expenses of foreign operations are translated at an average rate for the penod where this rate approximatas
to the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions

Exchange differences ansing from ttus translation of foreign operations are taken directly to the translation
reserve They are released into the income statement upon disposal of the foreign operation

The Group has taken advantage of relief available in IFRS 1 to deem the cumulative translation differences for
all foreign oparations to be zero at the date of transition to IFRS {1st May, 2006}

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial habilities are recognised on the Group’s balance sheet when the Group has become
a party to the contractual provistons of the instrument The principal financial assets and habidities of the Group
are as follows

Cash and cash aquivalents
Cash and cash equivalents compnise cash at bank and i hand including cash deposits wath an onginal matunty
of three months or less

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose only of the staterent of cash flows

Trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at
their amortised cost using the effective interest method where matenial as reduced by allowances for impairment
when there 1s ohjective ewidence of impairment A prowision for imparrment s established when the carrying
value of the receivable exceeds the present value of the future cash flow discounted using the aniginal effective
interest rate The carrying value of the receivable s reduced through the use of an impairment account and any
impairment l0ss 15 recogrised in the income statement

Recognition and valuation of equity instruments

Equity instruments are stated at par value For ordinary share capital, the par value 1s recognised 1n share capital
and the premium in the share premium reserve

Recogmition and valuation of financial habilities
Financial habilities are classified according to the substance of the contractuat arrangements entered into

Bank borrowings

Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are imthially recorded at their fair value less attributable transaction
costs They are subsequently carried at their amortised cost and finance charges are recognised in the income
statement over the term of the instrument using an effective rate of interest Bank overdrafts that form anintegral
partof the Group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
only of the statement of cash flows

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are wutially recogrused at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method where matenal

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Perivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value The fair value of interest rate swaps 1s the estimated
amount that the Group would recerve or pay to termunate the swap at the balance sheet date, taking into account
current interest rates and the current creditworthiness of the swap counterparties The fair value of forward
exchange contracts 15 equal to the present value of the difference between the contractual forward price and the
current forward price for the residual matunty of the contract For denvatives thatdo not form part of a designated
hedge relationshtp, the gain or loss on re-measurement to fair value 1s recognised immediately in profit or loss
However, where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting, recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on
the nature of the tem being hedged (see below}
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging {continued)

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative finanaial instrument 1s designated as a hedge of the vanability 1n cash flows of a recognised
asset or hability, or a highly probable forecast transaction, the effective part of any gain or loss on the denvative
financialinstrument s recognised directly inthe hedging reserve Any ineffectiveportienof the hedge s recognised
immediately in the income statement

For cash ftow hedges, the associated cumulative gain or loss 1s removed from equity and recogmsed in the
income statement 1n the same penod or periods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects profit or
loss

When a hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, terminated or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the
hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction 1s still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at
that point remains in equity and 1s recognised in accordance with the above policy when the transaction occurs
If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised
1N eguity I1s recognised In the income statement immedhately

When the forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial
hability, the associated cumulative gain or loss 1s removed from the hedging reserve and s inctuded in the wtial
cost or other carrying amount of the non-financial asset or hability

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items of property, plant and equipment

Leases in which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset are
classified as finance leases Where land and buildings are held under finance leases the accounting treatment of
the land 1s considered separately from that of the buildings Leased assets acquired by way of finance lease are
stated at an amount equal to the lower of their far value and the present value of the mimimum lease payments
atinception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and impairment |osses Lease payments are accounted
for as descnibed below

Depreciation 1s charged to the income statement over the estimated useful lives of each pant of an item of
property, plant and equipment on the following bases

Freehold Land Nil

Freehold buildings 2% on cost

Leasehold property over penod of lease

Plant and machinery 10% to 25% on reducing balance or cost
Motor vehicles 15% or 25% on reducing balance
Toolng over estimated production hife

Fixtures and fittings 15% to 25% on reducing balance

Assets under the course of construction are not depreciated

Intangible assets and goodwill

All business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method Goodwill represents amounts
ansing on acquisition of businesses In respect of business acguisitions that have occurred since 1st May, 2006,
goodwill represents the difference between the cost of the acquisition and the fair value of the net identifiable
assets and contingent liabilites acquired Fer acquisitions prior to the adoption of Revised IFRS 3 “Business
Combinations™ (1st May, 2010), cost includes directly attnibutable acquisition costs  For acquisitions after this
date, such costs are charged to the income statement Identifiable intangibles are those which ¢can be sold
separately or which anse from legal nghts regardless of whether those rights are separable

Goodwill Is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses Goodwall 18 allocated to cash-generating
units and 1s not amoruised butis tested annually for tmpairment

In respect of acquisitions prior to 1st May, 20086, goodwill 1s included at transition date on the basis of its
deemed cost, which represents the amount recorded under UK GAAP which was broadly comparable save
that only separable intangibles were recognised and goodwll was amortised On transition, amortisation of
goodwil has ceased as required by IFRS 1

Negative goodwill arising on an acquisition 1s recognised immediately in profit or loss
Expenditure on research activities 1s recogmised in the income statement as an expense as incurred

Expendriture on development activibies is capitahsed if the product or process 1s technically and commercially
feasible and the Group has sufficient resources to complete development The expenditure capitalised includes
the cost of matenals, direct labour and an appropnate proportion of overheads Other development expenditure
15 recogrised In the income statement as an expense as incurred Capitalised development expenditure is
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Intangible assets and goodwill {continued)

Amortisation s charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful hives of
intangible assets unless such hives are indefinite  Intangible assets with an indefinite useful ife and goodwill
are systematically tested for impairment at each balance sheet date Other intangible assets are amortised from
the date they are available for use The estimated useful lives are as follows

* Capitalised development costs 5 years

+  Manufacturing nights 6-15 years
* Brand names 3-15 years
s Valve order book 1 year

*  Distnbution nghts 25 yaars
Inventories

Inventonies are stated atthe lower of cost and net realisable value Costis based enthe firstan, first-out principle
and includes expenditure incurred In acquinng the inventones and bringing them to thew existing location and
condition In the case of manufactured inventones and wark in progress, cost incluedes an appropriate share of
overheads based on normal operating capacity

Put option in respect of a minority interest in a subsidiary

Where the Group has, through a put option, an obligation to purchase shares in a subsidiary from a minonty
interest, a financial habilhity 1s recognised for the present value of the estimated consideration payabie under the
put option and the minority interest s not recognlsed

For acquisitions made prior to the adoption of Revised IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” (1st May, 2010) at each
reporting date, changes in the carrying amount of the hability ansing from vanations in the estimated fair value
of the purchase consideration (excluding the effect of the unwinding of the discount, which 1s accounted for
as a financial expense) are recogrused by adjusting the carrying amount of the goodwill recogrised on inttial
recogrition of the business combination For acguisitions after adoption of Revised IFRS 3, any changes in the
hability are recognised in the income statement

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there s any indication of impairment i any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount s estimated
Recoverable amount 1s the greater of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell or value in
use

For goodwill, assets that have an indefinite useful life and intangible assets that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount 1s estimated at each balance sheet date

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement

impairment losses recogrised 1n respect of cash generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allecated to cash generating units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit on a pro rata basis A cash generating unit 1s the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are {argely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets
Goodwill, assets that have an indefinite useful ife and intangible assets that are not yet available for use were
tested for impairment as at 1st May, 2006, the date of transition to Adopted IFRSs, even though no indication of
imparrment existed

Reversals of impairment

An impairment loss 1n respect of goodwill 1s not reversed

In respect of other assets, an impairment loss 1s reversed when there 1s an indication that the impairment loss
may no longer exist and there has been a change tn the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
An mparrment loss I1s reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, i no impairment loss had been
recogrused

Provisions

A provision is recogmised (n the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive oblhigation
as a result of a past event, and 1t 15 probable that an outflow of economic benefits wilt be required to settle the
obligation If the effect s material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriats, the
risks specific to the habihty

Warranty provisions

The Group carnes a warranty provision with respect to one of its product ines The warranties are negotiated at
contract placement stage and typically where given to a customer the warranty has a duration of between 2 and
4 years At the expiry of the warranty penod, the warranty provision is then released back into profit and loss
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NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conunued)

Revenue

Revenue represents the amounts (excluding value added taxes and other sales taxes) denived from the provision
of goods and services to external customers Revenue 1s recognised at the time the principal nsks and rewards
transfer to the customer typically being either shipment or customer acceptance

Expenseas

Operating leass payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight-hne basis over the
term of the lease Lease incentives received are recognised in the income statement as an integrat part of the
total lease expense

Finance lease payments

Mintmum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction cf the outstanding
liahty The finance charge 1s aflocated to each peried dunng the lease term 50 as to produce a constant
penodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the hability

Financial expenses
Financial expenses comprise interest payable and interest on finance feases

Interest income and interest payable 15 recognised 1n profit or loss as 1t accrues, using the effective interest
method

Pension costs

The Group contributes to a number of defined contnbution pension schemes for certain serior employees The
assets of these schemes are held in independently administered funds Group pension costs are charged to
income statement in the year for which contributions are paid

There were no outstanding or prepaid contnbutions at either the beginrung or end of the financial year

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year compnses current and deferred tax Tax 15 recogrised in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, In which case 1115 recogmsed
1N equity

Cumrent tax s the expected tax payahle onthe taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax 15 provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxatton purposes The following temporary differences
are not provided for the initial recognition of goodwill, the imitial recognition of assets or habilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other than in a business combination, and differences relating to
investments 1n subsidianes to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeabile future The
amount of deferred tax provided 15 based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and habilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset 1s recogrsed only 10 the extent that it1s probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised

Adoptad IFRS not yet apphed

The following Adopted IFRSs have been i1ssued but have not been applied by the Group in these financial
statements

New standards/interpretations not adopted

¢ Amendments to IAS 12 — Deferred tax and recovery of the underlying assets {effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st January, 2012)

¢ Amendmentsto lAS 1-Presentation of items of other comprehensive incoma {effective for penods beginning
on or after 1st July, 2012)

In addition to the above, amendments to a number of standards and interpretations under the 2011 annual

improvement project will becorne mandatory for the year ending 30th Apnl, 2013

The Group has considered the impact of these new standards and tnterpretations in future penods on profit,

earnings per share and net assets None of the above standards or interpretations are expected to have a

matenal impact
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NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2 Segmental information

Products and services from which reportable segments derive their revenues

For the purposes of management reporting to the chief operating decision maker, the Group 1s organised 1nto
two reportable operating divisions mechanical engineering and refractory engineering  Financial information
far each operating division is also avalable in a disaggregated form in line with the identified cash generating
units Segment assets and habihties include items directly attributable to segments as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 8 the Group’s reportable segments,
based on information repornted to the Group's Board of Directors for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance are as follows

* Mechamical Engineening - casting, machiming and general engineering design
+ Refractones Engineenng — powder manufacture and mineral processing

Information regarding the Group's operating segments 1s reported below Associates are included in Refractones
Engineering

Mechanical Refractories
Engineering Engineering SubTotal
Restated Restated Restated
See Note 1 See Note 1 See Note i
Year ended 30th April 2012 201 2012 20m 2012 2011
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue
External sales 78,784 65,139 29,127 27,769 107,911 92,508
Inter-segment sales 24,010 18,014 5,186 4,046 29,196 22,060
Total revenue 102,794 83,153 34,313 31,815 137,107 114,968
Reconciliation to
consolidated revenue
Inter-segment sales {29,196) (22,060}
Consolidated revenue for the year 107,911 92,908
Profits
Segment result including associates 10,716 6,246 4,044 4,275 14,760 10,521
Group centre (1,282} {1,319}
Group finance expenses {1,208} (1,054}
Consohdated profit before
tax for the year 12,273 8,148
Tax {2,938) {3,904}
Consolidated profit after
tax for the year 9,335 4,244
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2 Segmental information (continued)

Year ended 30th April

Segmental net assets

Mechanical Engineenng

Refractories Engineering

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Sub total reportable segment

PLC net assets

Investments elimination/
Goodwll adjustments

Other consolidation adjustments

Forexgn exchange/|AS 39

Consoldated total net assets

Segmental Segmental Segmental
total assets total habilities nat assets
Restated Restated Restated
See Note 1 See Note 1 See Note 1
2012 201 2012 2011 2012 20m
£'0600 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
59,342 57,069 46,165 43,846 13,177 13,213
23,423 20,557 11,406 9,612 12,017 10,938
82,765 77616 57,571 63,465 25,194 24,151
31,832 27,996
(7,013) {7,374}
(1,089) (1,499}
(216) 2,388
45,662

48,708

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating resources between segments, the Group's
Board of Directors monitors the tangible and financial assets attributable to each segment All assets are allocated

to reportable segments with the exception of those held by the parent Company (‘PLC’)

Geographical Segments

The Group operates in the following pnncipal locations

In presenting the information on geographical segments, revenue is based on the location of its customers and
assets on the location of the assets

UK

Rest of Europe
USA

Pacific Basin
Rest of world

Total

Year ended 30th April, 2012

Year ended 30th Apnil, 2011 restated see note 1

Opera- PPE QOpera- PPE

tional Nan Capital tional Non Capital

net current expendi- net current  expendi-

Revenue assets assets ture Revenue assets assets ture
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £:000 £'000
21,421 37,316 34,003 3,081 17,148 34,493 33,292 2,712
22,521 37N 615 329 24,540 3,920 684 320
7,780 - - - 11,441 - - -
26,119 5,200 135 166 2347 4,137 1 199
30,070 2,481 5,224 1,204 16,308 3112 4,820 1,923
107,911 48,708 39,977 4,760 92,908 45,662 38,867 5,154
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3 Expenses and auditors’ remuneration Restated
See Note 1
Included in profit before taxation are the following 2012 2011
£000 £'000
Depreciation
QOwned assets 2,968 2,625
Assets held under finance lease 126 192
Amortisation of intangible assets 715 535
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 51 10
Operating lease rentals
Rental of premises 358 298
Short term plant hire 162 153
Research and development expensed as incurred 917 960
Impairment of trade receivables 105 52
Foreign exchange gains {45} (631}
Loss/{gains) on denvatives at fair value through profit and loss 177 (234}
Fees receivabie by the auditors and their associates in respect of
Audit of these financial statements 42 42
Audit of the financial statements of subsidianes 83 74
Other audit related services 8 -

4 Staff numbers and costs

The average number of persons employed by the Group (including Dwectors) during the year, analysed by
category, was as follows

Number of amployees

2012 201

Werks personnet 903 836
Adrmnistration staff a6 45
949 881

2012 201

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows £'000 £°000
Wages and salaries 27,381 24,939
Social securnty costs 3,261 2,612
Other pension costs 25 25
30,667 27,576

5 Financial expenses 2012 2011
£000 £'000

Interest expense on finance leases 22 35
Unwinding of discount on deferred consideration 254 372
Interest expense on bank loans and overdrafts 929 647
Financial expenses 1,205 1,054
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NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6. Taxation Restated
See Note 1
Recognised in the income statement 2012 20M
£000 £000
Current tax expense
Current year 3,793 2,575
Adjustments for pnor years (78) 367
3,715 2,942
Deferred tax expense
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences — current year (308) {B5)
Orngination and reversal of temporary differences — prior years* {471) 1,011
2,938 3,888
Share of tax of associate companies - 16
Total tax expense 2,938 3,904
Restated
See Note 1
Reconcihiation of effective tax rate 2012 20m
£000 £000
Profit before tax 12,273 8,148
Tax using the UK corporation tax rate of 25 84% (2011 2781%) 3,171 2,266
Non-deductible expenses 207 134
Under provided in prior years - 56
QOver proviSion 1n prior years {549) (78)
Tax offset against brought forward losses (213) -
Losses not utihsed 49 78
Witholding tax unrelieved 40 63
Dferences in overseas tax rates 335 63
Associate companies tax (102) -
Charge due to change 1n UK tax legisiation* - 1,322
Total tax in income statement 2,938 3,904

*Due to the change 1n UK tax legislation where past, present and future expenditure on industrial buildings no
lenger qualify for tax relief, the Group had to write off in the pnor year £1,322,000 of taxation that 1s no longer
recoverable

The Group’s total amount of taxes payable in respect of the year ending Apnl 2012 comprising CorporationTax,
PAYE and National Insurance was £12 million

Deferred tax recognised directly in equity
The following amounts are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

2012 2011
£'000 £'000

Cash flow hedge deferred tax (credity/charge (925) 878

Earnings per share

The earnings per ordinary share has been calculated on profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders
of £8,952,000 (2011 £3,664,000 restated see note 1) and by reference to the 7,200,000 ordinary shares in issue
throughout both years

The Company has no share options or other diluting interests and accordingly, there 15 no difference in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)}

8 Dwvidends

Paid ordinary dividends during the year in respect of pnor years
29 166p (2010 27777p} per qualifying ordinary share

2012 2011
£'000 £000
2,100 2,000
2,100 2,000

After the balance sheet date an ordinary dividend of 32 082p per qualifying erdinary share was proposed by the

Directars {2011 ordinary dividend of 28 166p}

The current year proposed ordinary dividend of £2,310,000 has not been provided for within these financial
statements (2011 proposed ordinary dividend of £2, 100,000 was not provided for within the comparative figures)

9. Property, plant and equipment Assets In
Fixtures course of
Land and Plant and and construc-
buldings equipment fittings tion Total
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1st May, 2010 10,948 28,286 2,685 - 41,919
Additions 30 37 324 1,683 5,154
Reclassification 123 972 {1,095} - -
Disposals - (256) (16} - (272)
Exchange adjustment {70} (2) {4} - {76}
At 30th Apnl, 2011 11,031 32,17 1,894 1,683 46,725
At 1st May, 2011 11,031 32,117 1,894 1,683 46,725
Additions 1,452 2,416 182 710 4,760
Acquisitions {see note 25} - 39 - - 39
Reclassification 293 ~ - (293} -
Disposals - {446) (3) - {449)
Exchange adjustment {261) (434) [18) {237} (947}
At 30th Aprnil, 2012 12,515 33,692 2,058 1,863 50,128
Depreciation
At 1st May, 2010 1,603 15,332 1,724 - 18,658
Charged in year 107 2,545 165 - 2,817
Reclassification 26 621 (647) - -
Disposals - {153} {14) - (167)
Exchange adjustment (7 (4) (4 - (15)
At 30th Apnl, 2011 1,729 18,341 1,224 - 21,294
At 30th Apnl, 2011 1,729 18,341 1,224 - 21,294
Charged in year 262 2,671 161 - 3,004
Disposals - {222) (3) - (225)
Exchange adjustment (19) (218} {6} - (243)
At 30th Apnil, 2012 1,972 20,672 1,376 - 23,920
et book value
At 1st May, 2010 9,345 12,954 961 - 23,260
At 30th Apri, 2011 and 1st May, 201 9,302 13,778 670 1,683 25,431
At 30th Apnil, 2012 10,543 13,120 682 1,863 26,208

Leased plant and machinery

At 30th April, 2012 the net carrying amount of leased plant and machinery was £92%,000 (2011 £1,076,000) The

leased equipment secures lease obligations {see note 17}
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NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

10 Intangible assets Valve Distri- Manu- Develop-
Brand order bution facturing ment
Goodwill names book rights rights casts Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £°000 £°000 £'000 £'000
Cost
Balance at 1st May, 2010
as previously reported 7.0486 4,000 127 - 961 201 12,335
Prior year adjustment see note 1 1,025 - - - - - 1,025
Prior year exchange
adjustment see note 1 506 746 34 - - - 1,286
Balance at
1st May, 2010 restated see note 1 8,577 4,746 161 - 961 201 14,646
Additions 25 - - 632 17 - 674
Reduction (832) - - - - - (832)
Exchange adjustments 121 91 4 - - - 216
Balance at
30th Apnl, 2011 restated seenote 1 7,891 4,837 165 632 978 201 14,704
Additions 548 - - - - - 548
Acquisitions see note 25 277 678 17 - - - 972
Exchange adjustment {346} {303} {14} - - - (663)
Balance at 30th April, 2012 8,370 5,212 168 632 978 201 15,561
Amortisation
Balance at 1st May, 2010
as previously reported - 954 127 - 382 201 1,664
Priar year adjustment see note 1 - 136 19 - - - 155
Prior year exchange
adjustment see note 1 - 14 15 - - - 29
Balance at
tst May, 2010 restated see note 1 - 1,104 181 - 382 201 1,848
Armortisation for the year - 397 - 25 113 - 535
Exchange adjustment - 18 4 - - - 22
Balance at
30th Apnl, 2011 restated see note 1 - 1,519 185 25 495 201 2,405
Amortisation for the year - 567 17 25 106 - 715
Exchange adjustment - (78) (14} - - - (90}
Balance at 30th April, 2012 - 2,010 168 50 601 201 3,030
Net hook value
At 1st May, 2010 restated see note 1 8,677 3,642 - - 579 - 12,798
At 30th Aprl, 2011 restated see note 1 7891 3,318 - 607 483 - 12,289
At 30th Apnl, 2012 8,37¢ 3,202 - 582 377 - 12,531

During the year ended 30th Apnil, 2012, the Group has reviewed its accounting treatment of intangible assets on
acquisitions which has resulted in prior year adjustments as shown in the above table and as detailed in note 1

The £548,000 of additions to goodwﬂl m the current year relates to £35,000 increased interest in Noreva
GmbH by virtue of a minority dividend paid, and £513,000 in respect of a revision to the contingent deferved
consideration for Noreva GmbH The £277,000 of goodwill on acquisitions relates to £218,000 on the acquisition
of Sandersfire Internattonal Limited and £69,000 on the acquisition of JSRTechnology Limited (see note 25}
The reduction in goodwill in the prior year of £832,000 relates to a revision in the amount assessed as payable
with respect to the Group's deferred purchase habilities, and the £35,000 of additions to goodwill in the pnor
year relates to increased interest in Noreva GmbH by virtue of a minonty dividend paid

The £678,000 and £17000 of additions to brand names and order book n the current year relates to the
acquisition of Sandersfire International Limited and JSRTechnology Limited The £674,000 of additions in the
prior year includes £632,000 for the nght to distnbute and sell vermiculite, £17,000 for a patent for a new
manufacturing process for large super nickei castings, and goodwall of £25,000

Amortisation charge

The amortisatton charge of £715,000 (2011 £535,000 restated see note 1} 15 recognised tn cost of sales in the
Income statement
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Impairment testing for cash generating units containing goodwill
The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might
be impaired For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwilt i1s ailocated to the relevant subsidiary which 1s the
lawest level within the Group at which the goodwill 1s monitered for internal management purposes The aggregate
carrying amounts of goodwill altocated to each unit are

Restated

See Note 1

2012 2011

£°000 £'000

Easat Antennas Limited 324 324
Goodwin India Private Eimited 108 108
Noreva GmbH 4,315 4113
Goodwin Refractory Services Holdings Limited 3,348 3,346
Sandersfire International Limited 218 -
JSRTechnology Limited 59 -
8,370 7891

An impairment test 1s a comparison of the carrying value of the assets of a cash generating umit (“CGU"} to their
recoverable amount, based on a value-in-use calculation Recoverable amount 1s the greater of value-in-use and
market value Where the recoverable amount 15 less than the carrying value an impairment results During the year
each CGU containing goodwill was separately assessed and tested for impairment No impairment of the carrying
value of goodwill was indicated by this review

As part of testing goodwill for impairment detailed forecasts of operating cash flows for the next five years are used,
which are based on approved budgets and plans by the Board The forecasts represent the best estimate of future
performance of the CGU based on past performance and expectations for the market development of the CGU

A number of key assumptions are used as part of iImpairment testing These key assumptions such as the CGU'’s
position within its relevant market, its abibty to generate profitable orders within that market, expected growth
rates both 1n the market and geographically are made by management who also take into account past experience
and knowledge of forecast future performance together with other relevant external sources of information

The forecast projections use growth rate forecasts extrapolated over the mimimum expected Iife span of the unit
which range from 5% to 20% (2011 156%) Projections beyond the b year detailed forecasts do not assume any
growth The forecasts are then discounted at approprate rates considering the perceived levels of risk, ranging
from 9%-14% (2011 12-15%)

The estimates and assumptions made in connection with the impairment testing could differ from future actual
results of operations and cash flows A reasonably hkely vanation :n the assumptions would not give rise to an
tmpairment Howaever, future events could cause the Group to conclude that impairment indicators exist and that
the asset values associated with a given operation have become impaired

Investments in subsidianes and associate
The Group has the following principal subsidiaries and associates
Country of Class of

Subsidiarres mcorporation shares held % hald
Goodwin International Limited Great Britain Crdinary 100

Preference 100
Goodwin Steel Castings Limited Great Britain Ordinary 100
Dupre Minerals Limited Great Britain Ordinary 100

Preference 100
Easat Antennas Limited Great Britain Ordinary 94
Internet Central Limited Great Britain Ordinary 825
Goodwin Refractory Services Limited Great Britain Qrdinary 100
Hoben Internaticnal Limited Great Britain Ordinary 100
Sandersfire Internationat Limited Great Britain Ordinary 100
JSRTechnology Limited Great Britain Ordinary 75
Noreva GmbH Germany Ordinary 75*
Gold Star Powders India Private Limited India QOrdinary 80
Goodwin Ind:a Private Limited India Ordinary 80
Ultratec Jewelry Supplies Limited China Ordinary 51
SRS Guangzhou Limited China Ordinary 51
Goodwin Shanghal Co Limited China Qrdinary 100
Goodwin {(Shanxi) Pump Company Limited China Ordinary 100
Siam Casting Powders Lemited Thaitand QOrdinary 51
Goodwin Korea Co Limited South Korea Ordinary a5
Gold Star Brazit Limited Brazii Qrdinary 51
Goodwin Valve and Pump Company Limited Brazi Ordinary 100
Assocrates
Jewelry Plaster Limited Thailand Ordinary 49
Asian Industnal Investment Casting Powders Private Limited Ind:a Qrdinary a0
GoodwinTet Property Company Limited Thaitand Ordinary 49

*Whilst Noreva 1s a 75% owned subsidiary the company has been treated as a 100% subsidiary by virtue of there
being both put and call options in place for the remaining 25% of the share capital

All of the companies are involved in mechantcal and refractory engineering
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

11 Investments in subsidiaries and associate (continued)

The Group's share of profit after tax inits associates for the year ended 30th Apnl, 2012 was £393,000 (2011 £326,600)

Summary frnancial information of Group share of associates was

2012 20m

£0600 £°000

Balance at 1st May 1,137 919
Profit before tax 495 342
Tax (102) {16)
Dividend {(277) (247)
New associate - 237
Exchange adjustment (15) 198)
Balance at 30th April 1,238 1,137
2012 Share of

Profit

Assets Liabilities Reovenues after Tax

£000 £000 £000 £000

Jewelry Plaster Limited 1,153 249 1,141 327
GoodwinTet Property Company Limited 1,059 750 96 78
Asian Industnal Investment Casting Powders Private Limited 25 - 10 {12)
2,237 999 1,247 393

201

Share of

Profit

Assets Liabilities Revenues afterTax

£'000 £'600 £000 £000

Jewelry Plaster Limited 1,186 322 1,144 330
GoodwinTet Property Company Limited 237 - - -
Asian Industnal investment Casting Powders Private Limited 36 - - {4)
1,459 322 1,144 326

During 2011 the Group invested 1n a new associate, GoodwinTet Property Company Lumited - a company formed
to own the new freehold property for our subsichary Siam Casting Powders Limited

12 Warranty provision

Balance at 15t May
Utilised

Charged to profit and loss
Exchange adjustment

Balance at 30th Apnil

Warranty due within one year
Warranty due after one year

Balance at 30th Apnl

Restated

See Note 1

2012 20m
£000 £000
1,641 2,113
(603) {1,035)
463 530
{271} 33
1,225 1,641
655 786
570 855
1,225 1,641

201 has been restated as in previous years warranty provisions were included within accrued expenses
Provisions for warranties primartly refate to products scid and generally coves a period of between 2 and 4 years
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Deferred tax assets and habilities
Deferred tax assets and habuities are attnbutable to the followang
Assets Liabilities
Restated
See Note 1
2012 20m 2012 201
£000 £000 £000 £000
Property, plant and equipment - - 2,038 2,656
Denvative financial instruments 84 - - 807
Intangible assets - - 878 919
84 - 2,916 4,382
2012 201
£°000 £'000
Assets 84 -
Liabtnlities {2,916) (4,382)

(2,832) {4.382)

Property  Derivative
plant & financial Intangible

equipment nstruments Asssts Total
£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1st May, 2010 as previously reported 1,734 {188) - 1,546
Prior year adjustment see note 1 - - 1,025 1,025
Pricr year exchange adjustment see note 1 - - 241 243
Prior year recognised in income see note 1 - - (277} (277)
Balance at 1st May, 2010 restated see note 1 1,734 {188) 9389 2,535
Recogmsed in tncome 922 17 (93) 945
Recogrised 1n equity - 878 - 878
Exchange adjustment - - 23 23
Balance at 30th April, 2011 rastated see note 1 2,656 807 919 4,382
Recognised 1n income {673) 34 (138} (777)
Recogmsed in equity - {925) - {925)
Acquisition 6 - 168 174
Exchange adjustment 49 - 70 (22}
Balance at 30th April, 20012 2,038 (84} 878 2,832

During the year ended 30th Apnl, 2012, the Group has reviewed its accounting treatment of recognition of
deferred taxation on intangible assets on acquisitions which has resulted in prior year adjustments as shown
in the above table and as detailed in note 1

The Group has not recognised a deferred tax asset of £42,000 (2011 £205,000) in respect of subsidianes’ losses
Whilstthe Group believes there s a reasonable chance of recovering the tax losses, it 1s felt prudent to recognise
them as and when the profits anse

The 2012 Budget on 21st March, 2012 announced that the UK corporation tax rate will reduce to 22% by 2014
A reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 26% to 25% {effective from 1st Apnl, 2012) was substantively
enacted on 5th July, 2011, and further reductions to 24% (effective from 1st Apnl, 2012) and 23% {effective
from 1st April, 2013} were substantively enacted on 25th March, 2012 and 3rd July, 2012 respectively This wll
reduce the Group's future current tax charge accordingly and further reduce the deferred tax hability at 30th
Apnil, 2012 {which has been calculated based on the rate of 24% substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date} by £118,000 It has not yet been possible to quantify the full anticipated eflect of the announced further
1% rate reduction, although this will further reduce the Group’s future current tax charge and reduce the Group’s
deferred tax hability accordingly

2012 2011

Inventories £'000 £000
Raw materials and consumables 12,681 10,172
Work in progress 17,825 13,734
Finished goods 2,052 1,190
32,558 25,096
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15 Trade and other receivables 2012 20M
£°000 £'000

Trade receivables 21,094 23,533
Other receivables 2,039 1,329
Prepayments 1,201 802
24,334 25,664

16 Cash and cash equivalents 2012 2011
£°000 £000

Cash and cash equivalents per balance sheet 5,778 4,049
Bank overdrafts (759) (834)
Cash and cash equivalents per cash flow statement 5,019 3,215

17

18

Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings

This note provides infarmation about the contractual terms of the Group's interest-beanng bank loans and
borrowings formoreinformationaboutthe Group's exposuretointerestrate and foreigncurrency risk, see note 20

2012 201
Non-current liabilities £000 £000
Finance lease habihties 4860 663
Bank loans 16,007 11,663
16,487 12,326
Current habilities — —_—
Finance lease habilities 219 226
Finance lease liabilities
Finance lease llabiities are payable as follows
2012 20m
Minimum Mimmurm
lease lease
payments interest Principal payments Interest Principal
£'000 £000 £000 £:000 £000 £'000
Less than one year 233 14 219 244 18 226
Between one and five years 472 12 460 688 25 663
705 26 879 932 43 889
Trade and other payables Restated
See Note 1
2012 201
Currant liabilities £000 £000
Trade payables 15,734 13,642
Non-trade payables and accrued expenses 5,112 4528
Other taxaton and social securnty costs 1,660 1,715
Payments received on account 3,743 4,659
26,249 24,544
Deferred and contingent considerations on acquisitions 3,256 2,774
Non-current liabilities
Deferred and contingent consideration on acquisitions - 2,677

2011 has been restated as in previous years warranttes were included within accrued expense, but are now
disclosed separately within warranty provisions in the balance sheet

The deferred consideration at 30th April, 2012 relates to the acquisition of Sandersfire International Limited {2012
£338,000, 2011 £nf), and the acquisition of Noreva GmbH (2012 £2,918,000, 2011 £2,677000) The £241,000
movement in the year for the deferred constderation for Noreva GmbH, reflects an additional £513,000 of goodwill
in respect of a revision to the contingent deferred consideration, an additional £228,000 for discount unwind less
£600,000 paid out under the terms of the sale purchase agreement

The deferred consideration at 30th Apnil, 2011 also included £2,774,000 payable in relation to the acquisition of SRS
Holdings Limited This was satisfied in full duning the current year via a £26,000 discount unwind and a payment
under the terms of the sale purchase agreement of £2,800,000

The lhabihties are calculated on the basis of payments being made at the earliest opportunity under the legal
agreements as discounted to present values using an assumed cost of capitat of 6 5%
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19 Capital and reserves

Reconciliation of movement in capital and reserves Total
attributable
Trans- Cash flow to equity

Share lation hedging Retained holdersof Mmonty Total

caprtal reserve reserve earmings the parent mterest equity

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £r000 £'000
Balance at 30th Apn, 2010

as previously reported 720 1,199 {74) 35,082 36,927 3,242 40,169
Prior year adjustment

see note 1 - 1,016 - 122 1,138 - 1,138
Balance at 30th Apnl, 2010

rastated soe note 1 720 2,215 {74) 35,204 38,065 3,242 41,307
Total comprehensive

income - - 2,496 3,664 6,160 506 6,666
Devidends paid - - - {2,000} {2,000) {311) {2,311)
Balance at 30th Apnl, 2011

restated see note 1 720 2,215 2,422 36,868 42,226 3,437 45,6682
Total comprehensive

Income - {1,386} {2,655} 8,952 4,912 292 5,204
Dividends paid - - - {2,100} {2,100) {58) (2,158)
Balance at 30th Apnl, 2012 720 830 (233) 43,720 45,037 3,671 48,708

Translation reserve

The translation reserve compnses all foreign exchange differences ansing from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations

Cash flow hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portton of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow
hedge instreuments related to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred

The aggregate deferred tax relating to stems that are recogmised 1n equity 15 an asset of £74,000 (2011 hability
£851,000)

Share capital 2012 201
£'000 £'000
Authorised, allotted, catled up and fully paid

7.200,000 ordinary shares of 10p each 720 720

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitted
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company

20 Financial risk management

The Group’s operations expose (t to a variety of financral nisks thatinclude the effects of changes 1n market prices
(interest rates, foreign exchange rates and commeod ity prices), crechit nsks, and iquidity The Group has in place
nsk management policies that seek to limit the adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group by
using various instruments and techniques

Risk management policies have been set by the Board and applied by the Group

a) Cradit risk

The Group's financial assets are cash and cash equivalents and trade and other recevables, the carrying
amounts of which represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit nisk in relation to financial assets

The credit nsk on liquid funds 1s lirmited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit rating agencies

The Group's credit nisk 1s prnimanly attributable to its trade receivables, and 1s managed through the following
processes

1) The majonty of orders accepted by Group companies are taken with credit insurance coverage
1) Some orders are accepted with no credit insurance but with letters of credit

Hi) Some orders are accepted with no credit insurance and no letter of credit but with internal analysis of
the customer's size, credit worthiness, historic profitability and payment record

w}) A few orders (less than 10%) are taken at nsk following review by more than two Board members
v} Major orders are normally accompanied by stage payments which go towards mitigating our credit risk
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20 Financial risk management (continued)

Exposure to cradit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the reporting date was

Carrying amount

2012 20m

Notes £'¢00 £'000

Trade and other receivables 15 23,133 24,862
Cash at bank and cash equivalents 16 5,778 4,049
Denvative financial assets 20(e} 1,407 4,349
30,318 33,260

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by geographic region was

Carrying amount

2012 20m
£'000 £000
UK 4,225 3,849
Rest of Europe 4,028 5,959
USA 896 2,679
Pacific Basin 7,012 5,183
Rest of World 4,933 5,853
21,094 23,533

The ageing of trade recevables and impairments at the reporting date were
Net Gross Impairment Net Gross  Imparrment
2012 2012 2012 201 20m 20m
£°000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £:000
Not past due 13,173 13,173 - 14,772 14,772 -
Past due 1-30 days 2,961 2,961 - 3,063 3,063 -
Past due 31-90 days 2,732 2,732 - 2,465 2,465 -
Past due more than 90 days 2,228 2,659 (431) 3,233 3,614 (381)
21,094 21,525 (431) 23,633 23,914 (381}

There are no significant credit nsks ansing from the above assets and management believes the credit
quality of customers 1s good hased on a review of past payment history and the current financial status of
the customers The Group has not renegotiated the terms of any trade recervables and has not pledged any
trade recewvables as secunty

The Directors estimate that the fair value of the Group’s trade and other receivables 1s approximate to their
carrying values

2012 201
An analysis of the provisian for impairment of receivables is as follows £000 f'000
At beginning of year 381 359
Charge for the year 105 52
Acguisthion 16 -
Unhised during the year (71) {30)
At end of year 431 38

35
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20 Financial nsk menagement {continued)

b) Liquidity risk
Liguidity nsk 15 the nisk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due

The Group’s approach to managing hquidity 1s ta ensure, as far as possible, thatit will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet 1ts habiltties when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or nsking damage to the Group’s reputation

At the year end the Group had the following unutihsed bank faciliies in respect of which all conditions
precedent had been met

Uncommitted Committed Total
2012 20m 2012 2011 2012 20M
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Unutilised bank facilities 14,814 12,632 500 3,000 15,314 15,632

The Group’s principal borrowing facihities are provided by 3 banks in the form of borrowings and short term
overdraft facihties The quantum of borrowing facilities available to the Group 1s reviewed regularly in iight
of current working capital requirements and the need for capital investment for the long term future for the
Group

Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the Greup's financial labilibes into matunty groupings hased on the period
outstanding at the balance sheet date up to the contractual maturity date Alt figures are contracted gross
cashflows that have not been discounted

2012 Carrying
Contractual cash flows value
Within 2012
1t year 1-5 years Total Total
£000 £'000 £:000 £000

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Qverdrafts 759 - 759 759
Bank loans - 16,093 16,093 16,007
Finance leases 233 a72 705 679
Trade and other payables 26,249 - 26,249 26,249
Deferred considerations on acquisitions 3,256 - 3,256 3,256
Total 30,497 16,565 47,062 46,950
20m Carrying
Contractual cash flows value
Restated Restated
See Note 1 See Note 1
Within 20m
1 year 1-5 years Total Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £000

Non-denvative financial habilities

Qverdrafts 834 - 834 834
Bank |eans - 11,794 11,794 11,663
Finance leases 244 688 a32 883
Trade and other payables 24,544 - 24,544 24,544
Deferred consideration on acquisition 2,800 2,850 5,650 5,451
Totai 28,422 15,332 43,754 43,381

2011 has been restated as in previous years, warranties were included within trade and other payables
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20 Financial risk management (continued)

c) Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group 1s subject to fluctuations 1n exchange rates on Its net investments overseas and transactional
monetary assets and habihties not denominated in the operating (or “functional”} currency of the operating
umit Involved

The Greup 1s exposed to fluctuations in several currencies which give rise to the net currency gains and losses
recognised in the income statement

The Group at its discretionis empowered to hedge its estimated annual foreign currency exposure In respect
of forecast sales and purchases if the Board deems it appropnate after having taken into account the expected
movement In the foreign exchange rates The Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its foreign
currency nsk Most of the foreign exchange contracts have matunties of less than one year after the balance
sheet date Where necessary, the forward exchange contracts are rolled over at matunty

In respect of other monetary assets and habilities held in currencies, the Group ensures that the net exposure
15 ¢liminated through the use of forward exchange contracts or spot transactions at the time the contractual
commitment 1s In place

Currency profile of financial assets and habilities

2012 20Mm 2012 20Mm 2012 2m 2012 20M
uUs us
Doltar Dollar Euro Euro Other Other Total Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £000 £000 £'000
Trade and other
receivables 7,665 7.069 2,016 2,801 40 535 9,721 10,405
Cash and cash
equivalents 341 2,428 29% - 397 - 1,033 2,428
Bank overdrafts - - - {3,117} {63) - (63) (3.117)
Bank loans - - - - - - - -
Finance lease
habilities - - - - - - - -
Trade and other
payables (411) (443) {720) {1,679} {4) 12)  (1,135) {2,140}
7,595 9,048 1,591 {1,995} 370 523 9,556 7576
The following significant exchange rates applied during the year
Average Reporting date
Exchange rate spot rate
2012 201 2012 20m
US Doilar 1592 1564 16231 1.6627
Euro 1170 1169 1 2287 11216
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20 Financial risk management (cont/nued)

c)

d)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group i1s subject to fluctuations in interest rates on its borrowings and surplus cash The Group s aware
of the financial products available to ensure against adverse maverments in interest rates  Formal reviews
are undertaken to determine whether such instruments are appropnate for the Group During the year, no
new interest rate swaps were entered into

The Group has teken out in previous years £5 mullion of interest rate protection in the form of swaps and
caps Forthe year ended 30th April, 2012 these products ensure that the Group’s worse case borrowing rate
{including the banks margins} i1s capped

The table below shows the Group's financial assets and liabilities split by those beanng fixed and floating
rates and those that are non-interest bearing

Fixed rate Floating rate Non-interest bearing Total
Restated Restated Restated
See Note 1 See Note 1 See Note 1
2012 20M 2012 20M 2012 20M 2012 20m

£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Cash and cash

equivalents - - 5,778 4,049 - - 5,778 4,049
Trade and other

receivables - - - - 25,741 30,013 25,741 30,013
Trade and other

payables - - (3.256) (5,451) (30,588) (27503} (33,844) (32,954}

Bank overdrafts -

(759) (834) - - (759) (834}

Bank lcans - - {16,007} (%1,663) - - {16,007) (11,663}
Finance lease
liabilities - - (679) (889) - - (679) (889)

- - {14,923) (14,788) (4,847) 2,510 (19,770) (12,278}

Other recervables and payables include derwvatives
2011 has been restated as 1n previous years warranties were included within trade and other payables

Capital management

The Group’s main objective when managing capital 1s to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns to shareholders The Board maintains a strong capital base
s0 as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the
business Operations are funded through various shareholders’ funds, bank debt, finance leases and,
where appropnate, deferred consideration on acquisstions The capital structure of the Group reflects the
judgement of the Board as to the appropnate balance of funding required At 30th Apnl, 2012, the capital
used was £60 0 rmilhon, (2011 £570 milhion} as shown in the following table

2012 2011

£000 £:000
Cash and cash eguivalents 5,778 4,049
Bank overdrafts (759) (834)
Finance leases {679) (889)
BankTerm loans {10,500) {9,000}
Bank loans {5,507) (2,663)
Deferred consideration (3.256) {5451}
Net debt {14,923) (14,788)
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent {45,037) (42,225)
Capital {59,960} (57.013)

The Group aims to maintain a strong credit rating and headroom whiist optimising return to shareholders
through an appropriate balance of debt and equity funding The Group's strategy s to target a debt to
equity ratio below 30%, adjusted where appropriate for the effect of acquisitions At 30th April, 2012 net
debt was £14 8 milhon (which includes £12 9 muthon of debt incurred on acquisitions since 2007), giving a
debt/equity ratio of 33 1% (2011 35 0%}

The Group manages its capstal structure and makes adjustments to it with regard to the nsks inherent in the
business and in hght of changes to economic conditions

Working capital 13 managed in order to generate maximuem conversion of profits into cash and cash
equivalents Dividends are paid from current year profits, thereby maintaining equity

The policy for debt 15 to ensure a smooth debt maturnity profile with the objective of ensuring continuity of
funding The repayment profile for the debt 1s shown tn note 20{b}

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the year
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20 Financial risk management |continued)
d} Capital management (continued)

Currency derivatives

The Group utidises currency denvatives to hedge future transactions and cash flows The Group Is party to
a vanety of foreign currency forward contracts in the management of its exchange rate exposures

Forecast transactions

The Group classifies its forward exchange contracts hedging forecast transactions as cash flow hedges
and states them at fair value The nominal value of forward exchange contracts used as hedges of forecast
transactions at 30th Aprl, 2012 was US$20 00 mulhon (2011 US$52 79 muilion), the fair value of these at
30th Apnl, 2012 was an asset of £0 492 mifhon (2011 asset of £3 96 mulion) The Group also has a2 number
of forward contracts not designated as cash flow hedges, and therefore recorded at fair value through profit
or loss The nominal value of these contracts at 30th Apnl, 2012 was US%$40 4 mullion, €71 million and
INR523 million {2011 US$10 37 rmmuliion and €26 32 riltion), the fair value of these at 30th Apnl, 2012 was a
habthity of £0 347 milhon (2011 frability of £0 17 mtiron)

Recognised assets and habilities

Changes in the fair value of forward exchange contracts that economically hedge monetary assets and
habilities in foreign currencies and for which no hedge accounting 1s applied are recogmsed in the income
statement Both the changes in fair value of the forward contracts and the foreign exchange gains and losses
relating to the monetary items are recognised as part of administrative expenses

Interast rate swaps/caps
The Group uses interest rate swaps and caps contracts to manage (ts exposure to interest rate movements on
its bank borrowings The nominal value of these contracts at the year end was £5 mullion (2011 £10 nillion)

Thefair value of swaps/caps entered into at 30th April, 2012 was estimated at £799,000 hability (2011 £635,000
hability} Of these swaps/caps, the fair value of those designated as cash flow hedges at 30th Apni, 2012 was
£799,000 habsity (2017 £630,000 hability)

Denvative financial instruments

For cash flow hedges the followtng table sets out the penods when the cash flows are expected to occur and
when they are expected to affect profit or loss

2012
Periods in which cash flows and profits are expected to occur
Between
Carrying Expected Within 1 and Over
amount cash flow 1 year 5 years S5 years
£°000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Forward exchange contracts
Assets 492 492 492 - -
Liabihities - - - - -
Interest rate swaps
Liabihities (799) (799) (180) 619) -
{307) (307} 312 {619) -
20m
Periods (n which cash flows and profits are expected to occur
Between
Carrying Expected Within 1and Over
amount cash flow 1 year 5 years b years
£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Forward exchange contracts
Assets 3,960 3,960 3,794 166 -
Liabihtres {57) {87) (57) - -
Interest rate swaps
Liabilities (630) (630} (110} (520) -
3,273 3273 3,627 {354} -
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20 Financial nsk management (continued)

d) Capital management (continved)

Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Senstivity analysis

The Group has calculated the following sensitivities based on available data from forward contract markets
for the principal foreign currencies 1n which the Group operates  Given recent fluctuations 1n rates, 1t s
deemed sensible to provide the quantum for a 1% change 1n rates to aid understanding These figures can
be extrapolated proportionately to obtain an estimate of the impact of large movements

2012 201

£000 £000
Impact on equity
1% increase 1n US Dollar fx rate against pound sterling (124) {308)
1% decrease in US Dollar fx rate against pound sterling 124 308
Impact on profit or loss
1% increase 1n US Dollar fx rate against pound sterling {244) {71
1% increase 1n India Rupee fx rate against pound steriing 62 -
1% increase (n Euro fx rate against pound sterling (58) (226}
1% decrease 1n US Dollar fx rate against pound sterling 244 71
1% decrease in India Rupee fx rate against pound sterling {82) -
1% decrease 1n Euro fx rate against pound sterling 58 228

The Group has calculated the following sensitvities based on available data from forward markets for fixed
and floating interest rates Management believe that these reflect the most probable rate movements

2012 2m
£'000 £000
Impact on equity
1% increase 1n base rate of interest 21 288
Impact on profit or loss

1% increase in base rate of interest - -

Total financial assets and liabilities

The tabie below sets out the Group's accounting classification of each class of financial assets and habihties,
and their fair values at 30th April, 2012 and 30th April, 2011

30th Apni, 2012 30th Apnil, 201
Restated see note 1
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amogunt Fair value
£000 £:000 £'000 £°000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5,778 5,778 4,049 4,049
Loans and receivables
Trade recewvables 21,094 21,094 23,533 23,533
Other recevables 3,240 3,240 2,131 213
At fair value through profit or loss
Denvative financial assets not designated in
a cash flow hedge relationship 215 915 389 389
Designated cash flow hedge relationships
Dernvative financial assets designated and
effective as cash flow hedging instruments 492 492 3,960 3,960
Total financial assets 31.519 31,519 34,062 34,062
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20.Financial risk management (continued)
e) Total financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

30th Apnil, 2012 30th Apnl, 2011
Restated see note 1
Carrying Carrying

amount Fair value amount Fair value

£000 £000 £000 £'000

Bank overdraft 759 759 834 834
Trade payables 15,734 15,734 13,642 13,642
Other payables (current) 10,515 10,515 10,902 10,902
Deferred consideration (current) 3,256 3,256 2,774 2,774
Deferred consideration {non-current} - - 2677 2,677
Finance lease habiies 679 879 889 889
Bank loans 16,007 16,007 11,663 11,663
Warranty provisions 1,225 1,225 1,641 1,641

At fair value through profit or loss
Denvative financial habiliies not designated

in a cash flow hedge relationship 1,262 1,262 589 559
Designated cash flow hedge relationships

Denvative financial habihties designated and
effective as cash flow hedging instruments 799 799 687 687

Total financial liabilities 50,236 50,236 46,268 46,268

2011 has been restated as in previous years warranties were included within other payables

Dertvative financial assets and habilities fair values in the above table are derived using Level 2 inputs as
defined by IFRS 7 as detailed in the paragraph below All other financial assets and habilities fair values are
determined using Level 3 mputs

IFRS 7 requires that the classification of financial instruments at fair value be determined by reference to
the souree of inputs used to denve the fair value This classification uses the following three-level hierarchy
Level 1 - quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habilities, Level 2 - inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or habilty, either directly {1 e as
prices} or indirectly {1 e derived from prices), Level 3 - inputs for the asset or habihty that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Under IAS 38, all denvative financial instruments not in a hedge relationship ars classified as derivatives at
fair value through profit orloss The Group does not use derivatives forspeculative purposes All transactions
in denvative financial instruments are underpinned by firm orders from customers or to supphers or where
there is a high degree of certainty that orders will be received

For short term cash and cash equivalents trade and other receivables trade and other payables and floating
rate borrowings, the fair values are the same as carrying value For fixed rate berrowings, forward currency
contracts and interest rate instruments fair values have been calculated by discounting the cash flows at
prevalling appropriate market rates Other assets reflect management’s estimate of value on an appropnate
basis

21 Operating leases
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows

Land and Total Total

buildings Other 2012 20m

£'000 £'000 £000 £000

Less than one year 281 44 305 204
Between one and five years 495 27 522 570
756 nm 827 774

22 Capital commitments

Contracted capital commitments at 30th Apnl, 2012 for which no provision has been made n these financial
statements were £450,000 (2011 £808,000)
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23 Guarantees and contingencies Number of
Total contracts
£°000
Year ended
30th Apnl, 2012 10,162 283
30th April, 201 8,462 223

The Group has 1ssued bank backed guarantee and bond commitments pringipally 1n order to secure its contragts

24 Subsequent events

After the balance sheet date an ordinary dividend of 32 082p per qualifying ordinary share was proposed by the
Directors (2011 ordinary dividend of 29 166p)

The current year proposed ordinary dividend of £2,310,000 has not been provided for within these financial
statements (2011 proposed ordinary dividend of £2, 100,000 was not provided for within the comparative figures)

25 Acquisitions

The Group made two small acquisitions during the year to compliment existing operations, with JSR
Technology Limited added to the mechanical engineering division in August 2011 following the purchase of 756%
of the ordinary shares, and Sandersfire International Limited added to the refractories engineenng division
in May 2011, following the purchase of 100% of the ordinary shares JSRTechnology Limited will generate
synergy savings and reduce reliance on key suppliers, Sandersfire International Limited will add additional and
complimentary product lines The consohdated net profit for the year included 8 months net profit before tax
of JSRTechnology Limited of £Nil and 12 months net profit before tax of Sandersfire International Limited of
£87.000 If both acquisitions had occurred on the first day of the accounting period, Group revenue would have
increased by a further £131,000 and net profit would have decreased by £45,000

Acquired net assets at the acquisition date

Recogmused Fair value Carrying
values adjustments Amounts
£000 £000 £000
JSR Technology Limited
Brand name - 228 228
Order book - 17 17
Property plant and equipment 39 - 38
Inventories 72 - 72
Trade and cother receivables {net provision of £16,000} 161 - 161
Cash and cash equivalents 2 - 2
Overdraft {34) - {34)
Trade and other payables (227) - (227)
Deferred tax (8) {59) (67)
Finance leases {(13) - {13)
Net identifiable assets and habilities (8) 186 178
Purchase consideration — cash 237
Goodwill ansing 59
Sandersfire International Limited
Brand name - 450 450
Inventories 26 - 26
Trade and other receivables 62 - 82
Cash and cash equivalents 77 - 77
Trade and cther payables (79) - (79)
Deferred tax 2 {108} {108)
Net identifiable assets and habilities 88 342 430
Purchase consideration - deferred 338
Purchase consideration - cash 310
Goodwill ansing 218

The fair value adjustments include adjustments to reflect the valuation of intangible assets such as brand
narmes, intellectual property and order books At the same time, deferred tax has been recognised on these
intangibles in accordance with the requirements of JAS 12 “income Taxes”
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26 Accounting estimates and judgaments

(a) Recoverability of assets / impairment calculations

The Group's Directors review the appropnateness of the carrying values of its non-current and current assets

With regards to the non-current assets, the Directors are of the opintan that the goodwall at the year end
remains urimpaired as the underlying performance of the subsidiaries giving nise to this goodwill 1s
sufficiently profitable to ment no iImpairment

Withregard to property, plant and equipment, the Directors continue to make reference inthe Directors’ Report
that, in their oprnion, the value of the Group's freehold land and buildings 15 in excess of the values disclosed
in the balance sheet With regard to plant and equipment, the Directors consider that the depreciation rates
apphed are sufficient, taking into account both the expected lifespan of the plant and equipment and also
the demand in the marketplace for the goods that the plant produces

With regard to current assets, the Directors look at the carrying values as stated 1n the halance sheet and
make full provision for any assets on which there 1s a high degree of probability that full conversion of such
assets into cash 1s unlikely

{b) Derivatives

lc

As stated in note 1, under denvative financial instruments and hedging, the Group has applied the provisions
of IAS 39 with respect to hedge accounting for its effective cash flow hedging on foreign exchange transactions
For the most part, the hedges are underpinned by firm orders and the balance relating to forecast activities
are relatively small given the Group’s normal order inputs in these currencies in addition to the foreign
exchange hedging the Group has also cash flow hedged an element of its interest rate swap denvative

Acquisitions

Note 10 contamns information about intangible assets recognised on acquisition These primanly relate to
existing contracts, brand names and customer hsts In determining the fair value of assets acquired under
business combinations, mcluding the valuation of other intangibles, a number of estimates are made These
estimates include the expected |ife spans of the products underpinning the purchasestogetherwith the returns
expected and the risk attaching to those returns

{d) Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation has been estimated using the best information available, including seeking the opinions
of independent experts when applicable
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GOODWIN PLC

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
At 30th April, 2012

2012
Note £'000
FIXED ASSETS
Intangible assets c4 1,044
Tangible assets C5 13,567
Investments cé 16,318
30,919
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors cz 27,100
Cash at bank and in hand 831
27,931
CREDITORS amounts falling due within one year c8 {10,382)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 17,549
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 48,468
CREDITORS amounts falling due after more than one year c9 (14,868}
PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES cto {1,768}
NET ASSETS 31,832
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 11 720
Hedge reserve ci12 {608)
Profit and loss account ciz 31,720
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 31,832

2m
£000

1,308
13,315
14,828

29,451

25,659
305

25,964
{10,789}

15,175

44,626

(14,209)

(2,421}

27,996

720
(466)
27,742

27,996

These financial statements were approved by the board of Directors on 27th July, 2012 and signed on its behalf by

:7:[. 18 Cooodoss—=

J W GOODWIN
Director

Registered Company Number 305907

g

R S GOODWIN
Chrector
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C1

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
UK GAAP accounting policies

Principal accounting policies

The Company has elected to prepare its financial statements under UK GAAP

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered
matenal in relation to these financial statements

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared underthe historical cost accounting rules, except for denvatives
which are valued at fair value, and in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards

The Company is exempt under S408(3) Comparnies Act 2006 from the requirement to present its own profit
and loss account

In accordance with FRS 1, the Company 1s exempt from prepanng its own cash flow statement Inaccordance
with FRS 8 “Related parties” the Company 1s exempt from disclosing transactions with its subsidianes

The Company has adopied the requirements of FRS 29 and has taken the exernption under that standard from
disclosure on the grounds that the Group financial statements contain disclosures in comphance with IFRS 7

Investment in subsidiary undertakings
In the Company’s financial staterments, investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less amounts
written off for impairment

Foreign currencias

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction
Monetaryassets and habilities denominated inforeigncurrencies are translated using the rate of exchange ruling
at the balance sheet date and the gains and losses on translation are included in the profit and loss account

Intangible fixed assets and amortisation

Intangihle assets acquired as partof an acquisition are capitalised at their fair value where thss can be measured
reliably

Manufacturing rights, brand names and customer hsts purchased by the Company are amortused to nil by
equal annual instaiments over their useful economic lives, generally their respective unexpired penods, of
between 6 and 15 years

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Depreciation 1s calculated so as to write down the cost of fixed assets to their antictpated residual value over
their estimated useful lives The method of calculation and the annual rates applhed are as follows

Freehold fand Nil

Freehold builldings 2% on cost

Plant and machinery 10% to 25% on reducing balance or 26% on cost
Motor vehicles 15% or 25% on reduging balance

Fixtures and fittings 25% on reducing balance

Assets under the course of construction are not depreciated

Taxation

The charge for taxation 1s based on the profit for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because
of iming differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes Except
where otherwise required by accounting standards, full provision without disceunting 1s made for all timing
differences which have arnisen but not reversed at the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation is not provided on earnings retained 1n overseas subsidiary undertakings as it 1s not expected
that an actual liability will anise

Leasing

Where the Company entars into a lease which entails taking substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of an asset, the lease 1s treated as a “finance lease” The asset s recorded 1n the halance sheet as a tangible
fixed asset and is depreciated over 1ts estimated useful life, or the term of the lease, whichever i1s shorter
Future instalments under such leases, net of finance charges, are included with creditors Rentals payable
are apportioned between the finance element, which 1s charged to the profit and loss account, and the capual
element which reduces the outstanding obhgation for future instaiments

All other leases are accounted for as "operating leases” and the rental charges are charged to the profit and
loss account on a straight line basis over the Iife of the lease

Financial Instruments

The Company uses financial instruments to manage financial risks associated with the Group's underlying
business activities and the financing of those business activities The Company does not undertake any trading
it financgial iInstruments

Denvatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date that the contract 15 entered into and subsequently
re-measufed in future penods at thesr fair value The method of recogmsing the resulting change in fair value
1s dependent on whether the derivative 1s designated as a hedging instrument

The fair value of interest rate swaps 15 the estimated amount that the Company would receive or pay to
terminate the swaps at the balance sheet date, taking inta account current interest rates and the current credit
worthiness of the swap counterparties

45




c2

C3

C4

Cs

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Profit for the financial year
The Company's profit for the financial year was £6,078,000 (2011 £4,964,000)

Included 1n profit before taxation are the following

2012 201
Fees receivable by the auditors and their associates in respect of £000 £000
Audit of these financial statements 16 16

Amounts paid to the Company’s auditor in respect of services to the Company, other than the audit of the
Company‘s financiai statements, have not been disclosed as the iInformationis required instead to be disclosed
on a consolidated basis {see note 3 on page 26)

Directors’ casts
Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report onpages 9 and 10

Intangible fixed assets
Intellectual

Brand Name Property
and customer Manufacturing Rights and
list rights Non-Compete Total
£000 £000 £'000 £:000
Cost
At beginning and end of year 880 827 594 2,301
Amortisation
At beginning of year 486 202 305 993
Charged m year 110 55 99 264
At end of year 596 257 404 1,257
Net book value
At 30th Apri, 2012 284 570 190 1,044
At 30th Apnl, 20Mm 394 625 289 1,308

The brand name and customer list reflectsthe purchase of anintangible assetto assist an existing manufactunng
process at one of the Group’s subsidiaries The manufactuning nghts brought forward reflect the payment
in a previous penod for an irrevocable keence for the Goodwin Group to manufacture the Noreva range of
nozzle check valves in the UK These nights will be amortised over 15 years in ine with the expected life of
the asset with appropnate royalties being charged to the UK subsidiary carrying on the manufactuning of
the valves The intangible asset, being in effect an inter company transaction, does not feature 1n the Group
accounts as an intangible asset

Tangible fixed assets Freehold Fixtures

land and Plant and and

buildings machinery fittings Total

£'000 £000 E'000 E£'000

Cost
At beginning of year 9,384 2,180 1,474 20,038
Additions 1,282 - 119 1,401
Disposals - {336} - {338)
At end of year 10,666 8,844 1,593 21,103
Depreciation
At beginming of year 1,487 4,280 956 6,723
Charge for year 201 648 105 954
Disposals - (131} - {131}
At end of year 1,688 4,797 1,061 7,546
Net book value
At 30th April, 2012 8,978 4,047 532 13,5657
At 30th Apnil, 2011 7,897 4,900 518 13,315
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Shares in

associated

undertakings

C6 Fixed asset investments £°000
Cost and net hook value

At beginrung of year 277

Additions -

At end of year 277

Shares in
Group
undertalungs

£'000

14,651
1,490

16,041

The additiens to Group undertakings during the year represented additional rnvestment in Goodwin (Shama)
Pump Company Limited (£92,000), additional investment in respect of a revision to the contingent deferred
consideration for Noreva GmbH (£513,000) and investments in new subsidianes Sandersfire International
Liruted {£648,000) and JSR Technology Limited {£237000} A lst of principal subsidiaries 1s given In

note 11 of the Group accounts

2012
C7 Debtors £000
Trade debtors -
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 25,633
Other debtors 305
Corporation tax 932
Denvative valuations 272
Prepayments and accrued income 58
27,100
2012
C8 Croaditors amounts falling due within one year £'000
Bank loans and overdrafts 917
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 3,886
Finance iease habilities 209
Other taxation and social security 192
Derivative valuations 799
Intra-Group derivatives 272
Deferred consideration on acquisitions 3,256
Accruals and deferred income 852
10,382
2012
C9 Craditors. amounts falling due after more than one year £000
Bank loans 14,414
Defetred and contingent constderation on acquisition of subsidianies -
Finance lease iabilities 454
14,868
C10 Provisions for liabilities
Deferred taxation
At beginning of year
Credit to the profit and loss/hedging reserve for the year
At end of year
The elements of deferred taxation are as follows
2012
£000
Difference between accumulated depreciation and
amortisation and capital allowances 1,763
Taxation on denivative financial instruments 15
1,768
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£000

201
£:000
828
4,415
209
164
635
1,247
2,774
517

10,789

20Mm
£000
10,869
2,677
663

14,209

2012

£000

2,421
{653}

1,768

20M
£'000

2,246
175

2,421
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)

Called up share capital

2012 20m
£'000 £000
Authorised, allotted, called up and fully paid
7.200,000 ordinary shares of 10p each 720 720
Share capital and reservas
Profit
Share Hedging and loss 2012 201
capital reserve account Total Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
At beginming of year 720 {466} 27,742 27,996 25,072
Profit for the year - {142} 6,078 5,936 4924
Dividends - - {2,100} {2,100} {2,000}
At end of year 720 (608) 31,720 31.832 27996

Contingent habihties

The Company s jointly and severally lhable for value added tax due by other members ofthe Group amounting
to ENit (2011 £N1)

Commitments

Contracted capital commitments at 30th April, 2012 for which nc provision has been made n these financial
statements were ENil (2011 £Ni}

Subsequent avents

Apart from the dividends declared after the balance sheet date {see note C16), no sigmificant events have
occurred after the halance sheet date

Dividends 2012 20m
£000 £'000

Final drvidends paid during the year in respect of pnor years
29 166p (2011 27777p} per qualfying ordinary share 2,100 2,000
2,100 2,000

After the balance sheet date an ordinary dividend of 32 082p per qualifying ordinary share was proposed by
the Directors {2011 ordinary dividand of 29 166p)

The current year proposed ordinary dividend of £2,310,000 has not been provided for within these financial
statements (2011 proposed ordinary dividend of £2,100,000)
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